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The Botswana Public 
Officers Pension Fund is the 

custodian of the blueprint 
on wealth creation and 

through its experience and 
expertise spanning decades, 

it endeavours to build 
an enduring future for 

its members during their 
twilight years.
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H I G H L I G H T S

MISSION

WE SECURE AND GROW MEMBER 
FUNDS IN A SUSTAINABLE MANNER 
ENABLING THEM A DIGNIFIED POST 
CAREER LIFE

VALUES

INTEGRITY
To portray 
professional 
behaviour and 
ethics

BOTHO
To conduct ourselves 
in a respectable 
manner at all times 
by being courteous, 
considerate,
responsive, and 
professional 

ACCOUNTABILITY
To take responsibility 
for our decisions

CUSTOMER FOCUS
To serve the best 
interests of our 
customers

V I S I O N

TO BE A TRUSTED INDUSTRY 
LEADER IN THE PROVISION OF 
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

INTRODUCTION
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CHAIRMAN’S
REVIEW

On behalf of the BPOPF Board of 
Trustees, it gives me great pleasure 
to present to you the 2016/17 Trustee 
Report. This report  demonstrates 
our commitment and resilience in 
the quest to invest member funds 
in a prudent manner to ensure 
continued growth of the funds.

Having completed a year doing self – 
administration, the Fund is capacitated and 
ready to serve its members. This essentially 
means our members now deal directly with 
the Fund instead of going through the 
administrator. Some of the services that are 
insourced include the pension payroll and 
data management.
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The Fund’s commitment and
adherence to corporate governance
 is what sets us apart from the 
rest of the pack in the pension 
fund industry. We understand 
that corporate governance is 
the pillar for survival in every 
institution especially in our 
industry where one is entrusted 
with member’s funds. Key 
amongst our duties as the Board 
of Trustees is to protect those 
funds and to mitigate risk. We 
are aware of our fiduciary role 
of ensuring that the benefits of 
our constituents are carefully 
invested and protected such 
that when they retire their 
livelihoods will be dignified. 
This is achieved through the 
provision of a sound strategic 
and policy direction for the Fund 
to achieve its set objectives. 

In an effort to promote ethical 
and responsible decision making 
by the Trustees, the Board 
adopted a code of conduct. This 
tool aims to guide the Trustees 

as they execute their mandate 
and to deter any conflict of 
interest. 

Among the challenges that we 
experienced is the high turnover 
and the delay in replacement 
of Trustees which threaten 
to undermine our governance 
structures. In addition, member 
data discrepancy has also 
proven to be a challenge, which 
normally leads to delays in 
processing of member benefits. 
However, the Fund continues to 
engage respective government 
departments to validate the 
data. 

For the period under review, the 
Fund performed fairly well as 
indicated by the declared final 
interest rate of 4.73% for the 
Active and Deferred Portfolio, 
1.5% for the With-Profit 
Pensioner Portfolio and 0% 
for the Pre-Retirement Switch 
Portfolio. The Asset base grew 
from P54.6 billion to P57.9 
billion. 

I am delighted to announce 
that members’ funds increased 
by 7% from P46.4 billion in 
2016 to P49.6 in 2017. The 
movement represents excess 
income over benefits paid and 
administration expenses. 

Finally, I would like to thank 
my fellow board members for 
their dedication and astute 
leadership, the management 
and staff of BPOPF for the hard 
work they have demonstrated. 

C. N. Morupisi
Board Chairperson
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S REPORT

The 2016/17 report outlines 
the activities and the financial 
statements of BPOPF for the 
period under review.

Regulatory Compliance 

As a result of the enactment of the new 
Retirement Fund Act which came into effect 
on 1st April 2017, the implementation has 
affected the way we have been operating, 
such as the submission timelines of the 
financial statements to the regulator. 
However, the Fund remains steadfast in 
ensuring that we adhere to the set timelines.
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As a regulatory requirement 
the Fund established the Risk 
Committee whose role is to 
discharge the oversight function 
of the Board of Trustees over 
the Fund’s risk management 
matters. The Fund further 
appointed a Compliance Officer 
for Anti-Money Laundering/ 
Counter Financing of Terrorism. 

BPOPF also established the 
Whistle-Blowing Facility. The 
purpose of this facility is to 
report issues of corruption, 
maladministration and fraud 
within the Fund.

Stakeholder Engagement
BPOPF engaged with its 
strategic partners such as the 
Directorate on Public Service 
Management and office of the 
Accountant General to create 
a platform for discussion and 
resolution of pension issues.

Moreover, we engaged media on 
several occasions through press 
briefings to update them on 
new developments at the Fund. 
In our view, media is a valuable 
stakeholder due to its ability to 
reach a significant number of 
our members. The information 
shared with them will then be 
broadcast to our members as it 
is our responsibility to ensure 
that they are informed. 

Rebranding
BPOPF officially unveiled its 
new brand identity to its 
stakeholders on April 6th, 2017. 
The new identity is aligned to 
the strategic direction that 
the Fund is moving into.  The 
identity was  fully embraced 
by the members and other 
stakeholder. 

Member Communication 
Strategy
During the period under review, 
the member communication 
strategy was finalized to assist 
in enhancing member education. 

The strategy suggests different 
platforms that can be used to 
engage with our members. We 
believe that our members can 
make wiser decisions if they 
are well informed about our 
product and services.

Lastly, we  thank the Board of 
trustees for their wisdom and 
guidance and the Executive 
Management and staff for 
continuously striving to go 
the extra mile in serving our 
members. 

Boitumelo Molefe
Chief Executive Officer
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FINANCE 
REPORT

The Department’s Functions

The Finance department is 
responsible for accurate recording 
of the day to day inflows and 
outflows of the members’ funds 
in accordance with established 
concepts, principles and 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRs).

The department adheres to:

• in-house financial 
regulations and policies 

• International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS)

• Non-Banking Financial 
Institutions Regulatory 
Authority (NBFIRA) Act

• Pension and Provident 
 Funds Act 

• the King III code of corporate 
governance with the 
intention to upgrade to King 
IV in due course.

Systems
For the year under review there 
were no s ystem enhancement s 
as the Fund continued to utilise 
the recently implemented 
Investment Management and 
Administrat ion Systems. 
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Reporting
The core funct ion of the 
department is financial planning 
and analysis, with a focus on 
historical and future reporting to 
allow the fund to meet it's long-
term strategic goals. 

The Finance department 
periodically reports to the 
Executive Committee, the 
Finance & Investment 
Committee and the Board to 
allow for timely and enhanced 
decision making.

Performance Highlights of 
the Year 1st April 2016 to 31st 
March 2017

Contributions
BPOPF (“The Fund”) is a defined 
c on t r i b u t i o n  f und  and  i s 
financed through mandatory 
contributions from employees 
at 5% of pensionable salary 
and 15% from the participating 
employer.  Some members choose 
to make additional voluntary 
contributions (AVCs).  AVCs are 
subject to a maximum of 15% 
of pensionable earnings for tax 
deductibility purposes in terms 
of the Income Tax Act. 

Contributions received declined 
by 8% from P2.8 billion in 2016 
to P2.5 billion in 2017 due to the 
retirement of a larger number of 
high value members during the 
year. 

Investment Income
The Fund has invested in different 
types of investment vehicles, 
both locally and offshore. The 
investment classes are:

• Equities

• Bonds

• Property

• Alternative investments

• Cash and cash equivalent

Net investment income grew by 
24% from P2.6 billion in 2016 to 
P3.2 billion in 2017. The increase 
was primarily due to unrealised 
gains from investments.

Members’ funds
Members’ funds increased by 
7% from P46.4 billion in 2016 
to P49.6 billion in 2017. The 
movement represents excess 
income over benefits paid and 
administration expenses.

Assets Under Management (AUM)
Investment assets grew from 
P54.6 billion in 2016 to P57.9 
billion in 2017, representing a 
6% increase. The increase in 
investment assets is mainly due 
to unrealised fair value gains of 
financial assets and investment 
properties.

Funding level
As at March 2017 the Fund is 
f inancia l ly  sound at 100.049%, 
indicating the ablity to meet 
member benefits as and when 
they become due.
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FUND 
ADMINISTRATION 
REPORT
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HIGHLIGHTS OF 2016-2017

The Botswana Public Officers Pension Fund  
insourced fund administration in June 2016 
after transferring from Alexander Forbes 
Financial Services.

Challenges
A number of challenges were 
encountered during the year, 
particularly with regard to the 
processing of claims due to 
delays brought about by data 
issues. 

Various process gaps were 
identified during the insourcing 
process which are being 

streamlined. The Fund is also 
cleaning member data to ensure 
that claim processing timelines 
are reduced and that member 
data is accurate and up-to-date. 

Due to the challenges, stabilisation 
of  Fund administration has 
become a strategic focus area 
for the Fund.
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Fund Administration Report [continued]

Member Communication 
Strategy
During the year the Member 
Communication Strategy was 
finalised which will improve  
member education activities. 
Various media will be used 
including radio stations in order 
to reach as many members 
as possible. It is critical that  
members know about their 
Fund, understand its products 
and procedures and work with 
the in-house administration 
department.  

The New BPOPF Brand
In order to improve fund 
visibility a new corporate identity 
was launched. Members across 
the country were interviewed as 
part of the brand development 
and we are pleased that there is 
brand recognition: especially as 
a result of the bold displays at 
regional offices.

Strengthening Strategic 
Partnerships
During the year, the BPOPF 
engaged with its strategic 
stakeholder, the Employer to 
create a platform for discussion 
and resolution of member issues. 
To date, various matters are still 
being resolved with individual 
ministr ies in conjuct ion with 
members. 

Membership 

As at 31 March 2017, the membership of the Fund was as follows:

Membership Portfolio Number of members

Active & Deferred Members 158,174

Pre-Retirement Switch 29

Pensioners 7,770

Total 165,973
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

REPORT
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The realisation of the BPOPF’s aspirations 
to create wealth for its members is firmly 
grounded on the tenets of good and sound 
corporate governance.

As a Fund, the BPOPF is cognisant 
of the importance of promoting 
and upholding best practice and 
governance principles as espoused 
in the various legislations and 
other governance instruments that 
govern the business of the Fund. 
As such the Fund reaffirms its 
continued commitment to comply 
with its corporate governance 
framework which is constituted 
by the Pensions and Provident 
Funds Act and its Regulations, the 
Fund Rules, the Board Charter, its 
internal policies and the King Code 
Principles amongst others.

1. The Board of Trustees 
The Fund is managed by a Board 
of Trustees, who are charged 
with the high level oversight 
function over the Fund’s 
Strategy, risk management and 
the fiduciary responsibility of 

ensuring that the Fund remains 
geared towards attaining its 
goals in a sustainable manner 
for the benefit of members.

1.1 Board Composition
The Board of Trustees is 
constituted in terms of the Fund 
Rules, and aims to achieve a 
balanced number of Employer 
and Member Trustees as well as 
one Pensioner Trustee and one 
External Independent Trustee. 
Employer Trustees are appointed 
by the Botswana Government while 
Member Trustees are appointed 
by recognised labour movements. 
The intention is to ensure that 
the Board composition reflects 
the constituency base, stakeholder 
interests and benefits from diverse 
views while remaining efficient 
and effective.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]

Trustee Name Appointing Authority Date of Appointment
Employer Trustees

Mr Carter N Morupisi (Chairman) Office of the President (OP) 30/04/2013
Brigadier Charles Nkele Botswana Defence Force (BDF) 05/06/2013
Mr Solomon Mantswe Botswana Police Service (BPS) 30/04/2013
Mrs Emma Peloetletse Ministry of Finance and Economic Development (MFED) 01/10/2013
Dr Kolaatamo Malefho National Strategy Office (NSO) 30/04/2013
Mr Ikwatlhaeng Bagopi Ministry of Defence, Justice and Security (MDJS) 30/04/2013
Ms Keneilwe Bogosing Prisons and Rehabilitation Services (PRS) 19/02/2015
Ms Ruth Maphorisa Directorate of Public Service Management (DPSM)           17/11/2016

Member Trustees

Mr Topias Marenga BOPEU 30/11/2014
Mr Ibo Kenosi (withdrawn) BTU 12/03/2015
Mr Tobokani Rari BOSETU 30/11/2014
Mr Ketlhalefile Motshegwa BLLAWU 30/11/2014
Mr Andrew Motsamai BOPEU 30/11/2014
Mr Kwenasebele Modukanele BOSETU 17/06/2015
Mr Betshobatsile Otsile NALCGPWU 17/06/2015
Mr Agang Gabana BTU 17/11/2016

Alternate Employer Trustees

Mr Kago Ramokate Ministry of Youth, Sports and Culture (MYSC) 13/09/2013
Mr Molefi Keaja Ministry of Local Government (MLG) 01/10/2013
Ms Kealeboga Moruti Botswana Police Service (BPS) 30/04/2013
Mr Anthony Mokento Prisons and Rehabilitation Services (PRS) 19/02/2015
Ms Shanaz El-Halabi                         Ministry of Health (MH) 28/08/2013

Ms Lifentse Likokoto Ministry of Finance and Economic Development 
(Resigned) (MFED) 12/03/2015

Mr Kagiso Kgaswanyane Botswana Defence Force (BDF)             18/08/2016
Ms Rose Sennanyana Ministry of Transport and Safety (MTS)                                18/08/2016

Alternate Member Trustees

Alternate Member Trustees
Mr Ikanyeng Moshabi BOPEU 19/02/2015
Mrs Neo Joel NALCGPWU 17/06/2015
Mr Disang Mokwape BLLAWU 30/11/2014
Ms Naledi Ratsoma BTU 19/02/2015
Mr Bahenyi Ntswakae NALCGPWU 11/06/2015
Mr Innocent Mannathoko BOSETU 19/02/2015
Mr Moses Monnatsie (withdrawn) BTU 19/02/2015
Mr Martin Gabobake                            BOPEU 19/02/2015
Mr Mogomotsi Motshegwa BOSETU          12/07/2016

The following were the Trustees of the Fund as at the end of the financial year 2016 - 2017:
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Trustee Name Appointing Authority Date of Appointment

Pensioner Trustees
Mr Ishmael Selebogo BCSPA 04/03/2008
Ms Catherine Kgomanyane (Alternate) BCSPA 10/04/2012

Withdrawals & Resignations Date of Withdrawal
/Resignation

Mr Ibo Kenosi                                                              20/07/2016
Mr Moses Monnatsie                 20/07/2016
Ms Lifentse Likokoto  01/06/2016

Abbreviations

BCSPA – Botswana Civil Service 
Pensioners Association

BOPEU – Botswana Public 
Employees Union

BTU – Botswana Teachers Union

NALCGPWU – National 
Amalgamated Local and Central 
Government and Parastatals 
Workers Union

BOSETU – Botswana Sectors of 
Educators Union

BLLAWU – Botswana Landboard 
Services, Local Authorities and 
Health Workers Union

1.2 The Board Charter
The Fund has adopted a Charter, 
which is aligned to the Fund Rules, 
the Pensions and Provident Funds 
Act and the principles of the King 
Code on Corporate Governance. 
The purpose of the Charter is to 
regulate the parameters within 
which the Board operates and to 

set out the roles and responsibilities 
of the Board as a collective and 
as individual Trustees. It includes 
matters relating to the composition 
of the Board, board meeting 
procedures, delegation of functions 
to committees and other related 
matters. The Charter is reviewed 
every three (3) years to ensure that 
the Fund is kept abreast with the 
continuously changing governance 
environment. It was last reviewed 
on the 18th August 2016.

1.3 The Role and Duties of the
Board of Trustees
The Board provides oversight and 
strategic leadership to the Fund. 
It exercises ultimate responsibility 
and is therefore the primary 
governance structure. The following 
are the duties of the Fund’s Board 
of Trustees; 

• Management, control and 
administration of the Fund; 

• Provide strategic and Policy 
direction for the Fund 
to achieve its strategic 
objectives;

• Ensure that proper controls 
are in place to mitigate 
significant risks faced by the 
Fund;

• Establish a risk management 
framework and its review;

• Ensure that the Fund 
complies with all legislative, 
policy and regulatory 
requirements;

• Determine the investment 
policy, setting out investment 
guidelines and performance 
benchmarks in line with the 
policy and

• Establish and manage 
stakeholder relations

1.4 Board Meetings
The Board sits regularly, at least 
once every three months, to discharge 
its responsibilities. It also sits on a 
special basis as and when required. 
Ten (10) Trustees present form a 
quorum, of which a minimum of 
six (6) trustees shall be Employer 
Trustees. 
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]

TRUSTEE
19/20 May 

2016
24 June 

2016
18/19 Aug 

2016
22 Sept 
2016

17/18 Nov 
2016

16/17 Feb 
2017

Mr. Carter Morupisi (Chairman) X X X

Dr Kolaatamo Malefho X X

Mr. Solomon Mantswe R X

Mrs. Emma Peloetletse X X

Ms. Keneilwe Bogosing X R

Mr. Ikwatlhaeng Bagopi
Brigadier Charles Nkele X R

Mr. Molefi Keaja X X

Mr. Ishmael Selebogo
Mr. Topias Marenga X

Mr. Andrew Motsamai R X

Mr. Tobokani Rari X X X

Mr. Ibo Kenosi X NT NT NT NT

Mr. Ketlhalefile Motshegwa X

Mr. Betshobatsile Otsile R

Mrs. Neo Dudu Joel X

Mr. Kwenasebele Modukanele X X

Mr. Johannes Tshukudu X

Ms. Ruth Maphorisa N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Ms. Boitumelo Molefe

LEGEND
  Present     X  Absent       R  Represented by alternate Trustee       N/A  Not yet appointed      NT  No Longer a Trustee

The Principal Officer/ Chief Executive Officer, with the assistance of Executive Management, has a
collective responsibility for implementing and operationalising the decisions of the Board to ensure that the 
Fund successfully discharges its mandate.

The Board held four (4) meetings as per schedule, and two (2) special meetings during the financial year. Trustees’ 
attendance of these meetings is shown in the table below:
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1.5 Board Committees
The Board has, without abdicating 
its own responsibilities delegated 
certain functions to well-structured 
committees constituted by both 
substantive and alternate Trustees. 
Each Committee has formal terms 
of reference that clearly set out its 
mandate and duties. The following 
structures make up the committees 
of the Board: 

1.5.1 Audit Committee
The purpose of this Committee is 
to discharge the oversight function 
of the Board of Trustees over audit 
matters relating to the Fund. The 
Committee’s function is to oversee 
and review the following: 
• The financial reporting process
• Internal control systems
• The audit process
• The process for monitoring 

compliance within the risk and 
legal framework.

1.5.2 Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee
This Committee is entrusted with 
all matters relating to ethical 
management of human resources in 
alignment with the applicable labour 
laws, policies and leading practices. 
This Committee’s functions include:
• Nomination of Independent 

Trustees to serve on the Board 
• Ensuring that human resources 

management strategies, policies 
and procedures are formulated 
in line with the Fund’s strategic 

vision and core objectives to 
govern the operations of the Fund 
and review and recommend any 
amendments to these strategies, 
policies and procedures.

• Overseeing the establishment of 
a remuneration policy at all levels 
in the Fund that will promote 
the achievement of strategic 
objectives and encourage 
individual performance, and 
assess whether the set objectives 
are being achieved. 

• Overseeing the preparation of 
an accurate and transparent 
remuneration policy for the Board 
of Trustees and recommend 
to the Board, a remuneration 
report, to be included in the 
Trustees Report.

1.5.3 Benefits Committee
The purpose of this Committee is to 
discharge the oversight function of 
the Board of Trustees over matters 
relating to administration of 
members’ benefits. The committee's 
functions include:

• Member Data Management
• Administration of death benefits
• Payment of member benefits 

arising from deaths, retirements 
and withdrawals

• Beneficiary Trust Services
• Member Education and 

Communication.

1.5.4 Finance and Investment 
Committee
The Finance and Investment 
Committee is entrusted with the 
oversight function of the Board 
of Trustees over finance and 
investment matters of the Fund 
in accordance with the Rules, 
Investment Policy Statement 
(IPS) and other applicable policies 
and regulations. The commitee's 
functions include:
 
• Reviews and reports on 

investment performance and 
compliance matters.

• Reviews and recommends 
financial regulations to the 
Board

• Gives effect to investment 
policies and strategies through 
an Investment Policy Statement.

• Ensures that the Fund keeps 
and maintains proper accounts 
relating to the assets, liabilities, 
income and expenditure. 

• Monitors the execution of the 
budget.

• Reviews and recommends the 
approval of the Fund’s annual 
financial review to the board of 
trustees.
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Corporate Governance Report [continued]

1.5.5 Risk Committee
The purpose of the Risk Committee 
is to discharge the oversight function 
of the Board of Trustees over the 
Fund’s risk management matters 
in accordance with the Rules, Risk 
Management Policy and other 
applicable policies and regulations. 
This Committee's functions include;

• Setting the Fund’s risk appetite 
and tolerance in a statement 
policy for the Board's approval

• Monitoring the Fund’s existing 
and emerging risks on an ongoing 
basis and potential exposure to 
risks of various types

1.5.6 Communications Committee
This Committee is entrusted with 
the oversight function over internal 
and external communications 
matters of the Fund in accordance 
with the Rules, applicable policies 
and laws. The commitee's functions 
include:

• ensuring that communications 
across all Fund structures are 
well coordinated, effectively 
managed and responsive to the 
diverse needs.

• continuously reviewing the 
communication strategy. 

1.6 Information, Training 
& Trustee Empowerment
The Board is cognisant of the need 
to ensure that it always has the 
capacity and knowledge necessary 
to oversee a pension fund. It has 

therefore put in place measures to 
induct new members and provide 
training and skills development to 
all Trustees. 

Throughout the year Trustees 
attended a variety of training 
courses, seminars and workshops 
as identified by the Fund. They 
also attend conferences in order to 
share experiences and knowledge 
with other industry participants, 
thus remaining at the forefront of 
relevant developments. During the 
year under review, Trustees attended 
the following training conferences, 
networking and capacity building 
events:
• Risk Management Masterclass, 

16-22 April 2016
• African Venture Capital  

Association Conference, 
 25 April 2016

• World Public Relations 
Conference, 29-31 May 2016

• Institute of Retirement Funds 
Conference, 28-30 August 2016

• Global Pension and Savings 
Conference, 19-21 September 
2016

• Strategic Human Resources 
Conference, 23-25 October 2016

• Effective Audit Committees 
Training , 7-10 November 2016

1.7 Challenges and Milestones
Some of the notable challenges and 
highlights of the Board during the 
reporting period were;

1.7.1 Challenges
• High turnover of Trustees which 

compromises governance and 
efforts that the Fund is making in 
enhancing the skills of trustees. 

• Being a public sector Fund, the 
members are spread across the 
entire country and therefore 
administration and education 
has been a challenge for the 
Fund, particularly with regards 
to the admistration of death 
benefits. 

• Lack of appreciation of legislature 
governing pensions by some 
members particularly those who 
retire early as demonstrated by 
their constant requests to be 
paid the (2/3) amount which is 
meant to purchase an annuity. 
This knowledge gap is being 
addressed through our various 
education campaigns.  

• Data inconsistency. To address 
this challenge, the Fund continues 

 to engage with all the government 
departments to authenticate 
the accuracy of their respective 
employee’s data.   

1.7.2 Milestones
• Implementation of the new 

business model, which commenced 
in 2013 and was completed in 
June 2016, entailed bringing 
in-house previously outsourced 
functions of Fund administration 
and Financial management. 
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The new business model 
implementation resulted in a 
new organisational structure 
for the Fund. The benefits of 
this transformation include 
cost efficiency and improved 
turnaround times of service 
delivery. 

• Transitioning of the Fund’s 
investment strategy from 
balanced mandates to specialist 
mandates. The transition was 
by all measures one of the 
most challenging processes that 
the Fund had to go through. 
This was exacerbated by the 
unfavourable market dynamics 
at play during this period. That 
notwithstanding, the Fund’s 
investments grew from P54.6 
billion to P57.9 Billion.

• Review and adoption of the 
Strategic Plan 2017/22, a 
demonstration of the Board’s 
commitment to the sustained 
success of the Fund. The new 
strategic priorities are focused on 
achieving excellence in serving as 
a public sector pension fund and 
providing service that meets the 
evolving needs and expectations 
of our members. 

 
• Adoption of a new corporate 

identity for the Fund which is 
reflective of the Fund’s corporate 
values and is in line with global 
trends.

1.8 Remuneration of Trustees
The BPOPF’s Trustee remuneration 
philosophy is premised on the 
fact that individual Trustees should 
be sufficiently and adequately 
compensated for the time and 
effort they devote to the business 
of the Fund. The form and amount 
of such compensation is determined 
by the Board of Trustees on 
recommendation from the Human 
Resource and Remunerat ion 
Committee, within any limitations 
imposed by the Rules of the Fund 
and in accordance with the Fund’s 
Remuneration Policy. 

In terms of Rule 12.1.2 of the Fund 
Rules, Employer Trustees and their 
alternates are not entitled to any 
remuneration for their services. 
Therefore, only Trustees in the 
member and pensioner constituency 
drew sitting allowances for attending 
meetings of the Fund, at a rate of 
BWP3 000 per sitting per member 
and BWP3 600 per committee 
chairperson. Trustees who travelled 
from outside Gaborone, the principal 
venue of meetings, were paid travel 
costs. The table below summarises 
the Trustees’ remuneration for the 
period under review.

1.9 Code of Conduct and Ethics
In order to promote ethical and 
responsible decision-making by the 
Trustees, the Board of Trustees has 
adopted a Code of Conduct. It forms 

a statement as to how the Trustees 
and Service providers are to conduct 
themselves in the discharge of their 
respective functions. The Code of 
Conduct emphasises the important 
fiduciary duties of the Trustees such 
as the duty to act in good faith, 
avoid any conflict of interest and 
to act with due care and diligence. 
The Code aims to prevent any 
situation that could compromise 
the independence of the individual 
Trustees, create a perception of 
conflict, or create an impairment of 
judgment in the internal decision 
making process. It also provides 
guidance to the Trustees on how 
to manage their relationship with 
service providers and stakeholders.

The Fund has adopted a Gift and 
Entertainment Policy for its trustees 
and staff. The main objective of the 
policy is to set out a procedure for 
the receipt of gifts and invitations 
to entertainment and hospitality 
events. These invitations may be 
from business associates, clients and 
other industry players. The policy 
covers the acceptance; approval; 
recording and disclosure of such 
gifts and invitations. This policy 
aims to prevent any situation that 
could compromise the independence 
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of the Fund, create a perception of 
conflict, or create an impairment of 
judgment in the internal decision 
making process. The policy clearly 
identifies how these should be 
disclosed within the respective 
values and thresholds. A quarterly 
report is prepared and presented to 
the board on the declarations for 
the quarter as well as for the year.

1.10 Board Performance 
Assessments
In compliance with PFR 10, the 
board, through an independent 
facilitation assessed its performance 
for the period under review. The 
effectiveness of the board, as well 
as that of the chairman of the 
board was evaluated. An action plan 
was developed and approved by the 
board to address gaps that were 
identified during the assessment.

1.11 Insurance
Insurance cover was taken out by 
the Fund for the following;
• Trustee fidelity insurance cover 

in the sum of BWP 20 Million
• Errors and omissions insurance 

cover in the sum of BWP 20 
Million 

No claims under these policies 
were lodged during the year under 
review.

2 Service Providers

The following are the various key 
service providers appointed by the 
board of trustees: 

Local Asset Managers
Afena Capital Botswana  
African Alliance Botswana
Allan Gray Botswana
Botswana Insurance Fund 
Management
Capital Management Botswana
Fleming Asset Management
Investec Asset Managers Botswana
Messidor 

Offshore Asset Managers
Brandywine Asset Management 
Epoch Investments
Franklin Templeton Investments
Harding Loevner
Harith General Partners
Investec Asset Management
Moravia Capital
Morgan Stanley
Rubrics Asset Management
Sarasin and Partners
Stenham Asset Management
Threadneedle Asset Management
Vantage Capital
Vontobel Asset Management

Asset Consultants
Novare Asset Consultants

Offshore Investments 
Administrator
Moore Capital Management 
Custodians

First National Bank of Botswana 
(local)
BNP Paribas (offshore)

Auditors
KPMG Chartered Accountants

Attorneys
Monthe Marumo & Company 
(incorporating
Molatlhegi & Associates)
Minchin & Kelly (Botswana)

Actuary
Deloitte Actuarial Solutions
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BPOPF TRUSTEE REMUNERATION: APRIL 2017 to MARCH 2017

Ishmael D Selebogo  57,900.00 

Topias Marenga  44,400.00 

Ketlhalefile Motshegwa  42,300.00 

Betshobatsile Otsile  33,300.00 

Kwenasebele modukanele  30,900.00 

Neo Dudu Joel  30,300.00 

Disang Mokwape  33,000.00 

Johannes Tshukudu  27,300.00 

Bahenyi Ntswakae  27,000.00 

Tobokani Rari  26,100.00 

Andrew Motsamai  24,000.00 

Ikanyeng Moshabi  21,300.00 

Innocent Monnathoko  21,000.00 

Martin Gabobake  21,000.00 

Naledi  Ratsoma  21,000.00 

Cathrine Kgomanyane  18,000.00 

Ibo Kenosi  9,000.00 

Agang Gabana  6,300.00 

Moses Monnatsie  3,000.00 

Mogomotsi Motshegwa  3,000.00 

 500,100.00 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES

C. N. Morupisi | Board Chairman 
Employer Trustee

A. Gabana 
Member Trustee

K. M. N. Motshegwa
 Member  Trustee

T. Marenga 
Member Trustee

J. Tshukudu
Member Trustee

K. Modukanele 

 Member Trustee
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Brigadier Charles Nkele
Employer Trustee

E. Peloetletse 
Employer Trustee

T. Rari
Member Trustee

B. Otsile 
Member Trustee

N. D. Joel
Member Trustee

K. S. Bogosing 
Employer Trustee
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES

I. Selebogo
Pensioner Trustee

S. Mantswe 
Employer Trustee

Dr K. Malefho 
Employer Trustee

I. Bagopi 
Employer Trustee

R. M. Maphorisa
 Employer Trustee
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TRUSTEES' QUALIFICATIONS

C. N. Morupisi | Board Chairman 
Employer Trustee

•  Msc Animal Science 
•  BSc in Agriculture

K. M. N. Motshegwa
Member Trustee

• BA Social Sciences - Political Science and 
Public Administration

N. D. Joel
Member Trustee

• Public Service Training
• Collective Bargaining, Job Evaluation and 

Grievances Handling Training

E. Peloetletse
Employer Trustee

• Post Graduate Diploma in Public Finance 
Management and ICT

• BComm Accounting

S. Mantswe
Employer Trustee

• Diploma in News Agency Journalism
• National Diploma in Mass Communication

I. Bagopi
Pensioner Trustee

• Diploma in Applied Criminology and Police 
Studies

• Crime Prevention and criminal Justice
• Public Relations and Personnel 

Management

I. Selebogo
Pensioner Trustee

• Post Graduate Diploma in Science and 
General Agriculture

• Certificate in Science and General 
Agriculture

J. Tshukudu
Member Trustee

• Masters of Arts in African Languages
• BA (Hons)
• Bachelor of Education

T. Marenga
Member Trustee

• Advanced Diploma in Human Resource
• Diploma in Labour Law
• Diploma in Purchasing and Supply

T. Rari
Member Trustee

• Masters in Industrial & Employment 
Relations

• Bachelor of Education Counselling
• Diploma in Secondary Education

Brigadier C. Nkele
Employer Trustee

• Diploma in Accounting and Business 
Studies

• Higher National Diploma in Accountancy
• Msc in National Security Strategy

Dr K. Malefho
Employer Trustee

• MBChB
• MRCP
• MRCS (A&E) RCSEd

A. Gabana
Member Trustee

• Bachelor of Science in Education
• Association of Higher Education and 

Disabilities,
• Education Training
• Diploma in Primary Education

K. Modukanele
Member Trustee

• NFQ Level 6 Strategic Management
• Master of Arts in History
• Bachelor of Arts in Humanities

B. Otsile
Member Trustee

• Junior Certificate in Education

K. S. Bogosing
Employer Trustee

• Bachelor of Arts in Social Sciences 
-Economics and Statistics

• Certificate in Prison Law and Management
• Law Enforcement Executive Development 

Programme
• Security Sector Reform Practitioners Course

R.M. Maphorisa
Employer Trustee

• Certificate in Provincial and Local 
Goverment LAW

• Masters of Arts-Rural Development
• Bachelor of Arts-Economics and Public 

Administration
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During the period 2016/17, the Fund held a 
number of stakeholder and media engagement 
events, with specific messages to communicate 
to our various stakeholders. 

The media is a valuable stakeholder 
because of their ability to reach a 
significant number of our members 
and pensioners. Interacting with 
the media is one of the most 
effective ways the Fund managed 
to reach its audience.

The value of stakeholder 
engagement lies in strengthening 
the Fund’s relationship with its 
stakeholders. 

The Fund conducted a number of 
stakeholder engagements including 
events with EXCO, internal staff and 
the media.

Our stakeholder engagement 
included the dissemination of a 
number of messages, including 
educating our members about 
the changes that have taken 
place within the Fund, insourcing, 
rebranding and other services.

Media Engagements:

The Fund conducted a number of 
media briefs about developments 
within the Fund. The briefs were 
well attended.
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AN UNPREDICTABLE ECONOMIC LANDSCAPE

While the economic landscape, both local 
and global, continues to be unsettled, 
the BPOPF is beginning to accept that 
unpredictability is now the “new normal”, 
and to adapt accordingly.

For example, who would have 
predicted the unexpected rise in 
the US economy after the election 
of the new president, when most
pundits predicted gloom and 
doom? In acquiesc ing that 
economic developments have
become increasingly unpredictable, 
the BPOPF believes that excellent 
investment s  a re  ava i l ab l e 
nevertheless, and that focussing 
on the fundamentals of the 
company is more important than 
predicting economic trends. Even 
struggling economies offer good 
investments and South Africa 
is a case in point. The BPOPF has 
therefore focussed on investing 
in solid companies that can 
be trusted, and not be driven 
by fluctuating stock exchange 
indices.

Challenges
As a pension Fund, the BPOPF 
needs to be focused on the long 
term. However, performance is 
often judged on a short term 
basis which can obscure the long 
term objective. The task of the 
Trustees is therefore to maintain 
a balance between short term 
and long term perspectives and 
be steadfast in achieving long 
term goals to protect member’s 
capital and mitigate risk.
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Investment Report [continued]

Members should be aware that the 
BPOPF investment strategy is geared 
towards protecting their retirement 
by not exposing it to unnecessary 
risk through maintaining a balanced 
long term perspective.

Members approaching retirement 
may be affected by market volatility. 
This is why it is important to plan 
for retirement and make decisions 
carefully.

Performance

There were no structural changes 
to the Fund’s investment portfolios 
during the year and emphasis was 
on balancing the various asset 
classes in line with the investment 
strategy. There was an increased 
focus on investments in Africa and 
in private equity, both locally and 
globally, as these asset classes were 
under-weight, and still require effort 
for full investment. 

The BPOPF’s investments are 
divided between four separate 
portfolios being the Active Member 
and Deferred Pensioner Portfolio, 
With-Profit Pensioner Portfolio, 
Non-Profit Pensioner Portfolio 
and the Pre-Retirement Switch 
Portfolio. Each portfolio has distinct 
characteristics, a specific purpose, 
and performs differently from the 
others. 
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Investment Report [continued]

at retirement. The agreed return 
can be 0%, 2.5%, 5% or 7.5% and is 
a defined benefit.

The portfolio is well funded with 
assets well above liabilities. The 
portfolio returned 7.30% which is 
2.27 above benchmark.

The main challenge of running 
this portifolio is the fact that 
the members' expectations must 
always be met. This means that 
the investment strategy should be 
well managed to maintain a healthy 
funding level.

Looking Ahead

As the Non-Bank Financial Institutions 
Regulatory Authority (NBFIRA) 
continues to refine its regulations, 
it is likely that regulatory changes 
may impact on the way the Fund 
operates and therefore there is 
need for flexibility and agility to 
ensure that member value is not 
compromised. 

The performance of the different 
portfolios, as at 31st March 2017, is 
outlined below:

The Active and Deferred 
Member Portfolio

The Active Member and 
Deferred Pensioner Portfolio 
returned 4.14%, which is 1.53% 
below benchmark.

Currently over 24% of the 
investments are in listed equities, 
against a target of 12.5%. The Fund 
is therefore progressively reducing 
the exposure equities to alternative 
investments.

The Pre-Retirement Switch 
Portfolio

The Pre-Retirement Switch portfolio 
is very conservative by nature, 
designed to preserve members’ 
capital as they approach retirement. 
The portfolio focuses on ensuring 
that retirees are not affected 
negatively before retirement. The 
portfolio is aimed at those who 
will be retiring in no more than 
three years’ time, and has a return 
objective of preserving capital, 
rather than of high growth. 

Members approaching retirement 
should consider the Pre-Retirement 
Switch if they want to preserve their 
accumulated capital without the 
risk of playing market timing. The 
portfolio provides steady growth 
with low risk. 

The portfolio returned 3.51% against 
the benchmark of 3.42%. This is a 
relatively small portfolio, which is 
mostly invested in cash. 

Members should note that good 
performance of the portfolio 
should not be a factor in their 
decision to move to the Pre-
Retirement Switch portfolio. The 
decision to move should be taken 
with due deliberation, based on 
a clear retirement plan. Once a 
member has chosen to switch, 
the decision cannot be 
reversed.

The With-Profit Pension 
Portfolio

The With-Profit Pension portfolio 
returned 5.37%, which is 3.16% 
above benchmark. 

The strategy for the portfolio requires 
inflation-linked instruments which 
are only currently available in South 
Africa. Another challenge faced by 
this portfolio is the requirement for 
bonds which are proving difficult to 
secure.

The Non-Profit Pensioner 
Portfolio

The Non-Profit Pensioner portfolio 
incorporates an annual growth 
return as agreed with the member 
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1. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund has adopted a three 
lines of defence model governance 
structure to ensure a robust risk 
management framework. This is 
a defence model used primarily to 
structure roles, responsibilities and 
accountabilities for decision making 
as follows:

1st Line of Defence – 
Management

Departments are responsible for 
ensuring that a risk and control 
environment is established as part 
of day to day operations. They 
are the first level of the control 
environment which performs day 
to day management activities. 
Management through the Risk 
Champions are adequately skilled to 
identify, assess, analyse, report and 
track risks and issues to closure.

2nd Line of Defence – The Risk 
& Compliance Management 
Function  

This level is responsible for 
facilitation of policy implementation 
and execution. They provide oversight 
over the risk management of the 
Fund by designing policies, setting 
direction, ensuring compliance and 
introducing leading practice. This 
ensures Policy owners are kept up 
to date, are able to respond to new 
strategic priorities and risks and to 
monitor compliance.

3rd Line of Defence – Internal 
Audit and External Audit 

Internal Audit’s role is to provide 
independent, objective assurance 
and consulting activities meant 
to add value to the Fund’s 
operations. On a periodic basis 
they provide assurance to the 
Board on the effectiveness of the 
Risk Management framework. 

External Audit provides independent 
assurance to the Board. They 
consider and provide assurance 
regarding key risks pertaining to the 
financial statements.

2. IDENTIFIED ISSUES AND 
RISKS IN 2016/17

The Fund identified 14 strategic/
high risks during the year 
under review, some of which 
resulted in financial loss. They 
mainly centred around Business 
Continuity Planning and Disaster 
Recovery, Succession Planning, 
Compliance Risk Management, 
Contract Management, Information 
Technology Governance and 
Security.  These strategic/high risks 
contributed to the development of 
the Internal Audit Plan to direct 
their efforts to high risk areas within 
the Fund. The Risk Committee and 
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the Board reviews these risks on a 
quarterly basis to ensure adequate 
systems and controls are in place to 
manage them.

3. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

 3.1 Establishment of the Risk 
Committee

 The Regulator, Non-Bank 
Financial Institutions Regulatory 
Authority (NBFIRA) issued the 
Pension Prudential Rules (PFR2) 
which required Pension Funds to 
establish Risk Committees which 
should consist at a minimum 
of the Principal Officer, the 
Risk Officer and a specialist  
Trustee. The Risk Committee has 
been established and sits on a 
quarterly basis.

 3.2 Designation of a 
Compliance Officer for 
purposes of Anti-Money 
Laundering/Counter 
Financing of Terrorism (AML/
CFT) Compliance

 The Fund has appointed a 
Compliance Officer for AML/CFT 
compliance purposes as per 
regulatory requirement. A policy 
has also been developed and 
approved by the Board to guide 
the Fund in combating AML/CFT 
activities.

4. ETHICS

 4.1 Establishment of an 
anonymous tip-off service/
whistle blowing facility

 The Fund has established a tip-
off anonymous facility to promote 
protection of its whistle blowers 

through an independent service 
provider. This facility is used to 
report issues of fraud, corruption 
and maladministration within 
the Fund. It is open to staff, 
members of the Fund, all 
relevant stakeholders and the 
Public at large.

5. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The Fund is exposed to various 
financial risks, including market 
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

These are managed through a 
process of ongoing identification, 
measurement and monitoring that 
is subject to an extensive framework 
of limits and other controls.

 5.1.1 Market Risk 
 This is the risk that asset prices 

will change unexpectedly or 
remain in unfavourable positions 
for longer than expected, due 
to systematic factors such as 
recession, etc. 

 
 Currently the Fund is closely 

monitoring the markets and will 
take relevant action as deemed 
necessary.

 
 
 As part  of  the market r isk , 

the Fund is  a lso exposed 
to currency risk mainly 
through its investments and 
term deposi t s denominated 
in foreign currencies, foreign 

investments in securities, bonds 
and unitised and mutual funds.

 The Fund keeps minimal cash  
in its portfolios. For risky 
assets, currency movements 
are strongly considered both 
before making investments and 
during the life of the investment. 

 5.1.2 Credit Risk
 The Fund takes on exposure 

to credit risk, which is the risk 
that a counterparty might be 
unable to pay amounts in full 
when due. The risk is mitigated 
by conducting credit risk 
assessments and due diligence 
on the Fund’s counterparties and 
portfolio management.

 5.1.3 Liquidity Risk
 This might occur if the Fund 

is unable to meet short term 
financial demands. The risk 
is mitigated through cash flow 
planning and liquidity cushions. 
The Fund also disinvests 
s t r a t e g i c a l l y , t h e r e b y 
minimising the need to convert 
assets to cash rapidly.

 The importance of effective risk 
and compliance management 
cannot be overemphasized 
especially as the Fund has 
insourced  i t s  p rev i ous l y 
outsourced administration 
services. The nature and 
additional volumes of 
transactions handled internally 
calls for a great level of risk 
management. 
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Boitumelo Molefe
CEO/ Principal Officer
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Bedu Tlhabologang
Corporate Communication Manager

Kwenantle Otukile
Board Secretary/Legal Services

Manager

Gaolatlhe Otsetswe
Fund Administration Director

Moemedi Malindah
Investment & Portfolio Director

Amantle Kerebotswe
Strategy and Change Manager

Neo Keboletse
Information Technology Director

Kebagaise Segakise
Finance Director

Kagiso Potongwane
Human Capital & Administration Director

Karabo Luke
Risk & Compliance Manager
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Board of Trustees
A
Name  Designation  Appointed  Resigned

Mr C N Morupisi  Chairman/Employer Trustee - OP  30/04/2013
Mr I Bagopi  Employer Trustee - Ministry of Defence, Justice and 
 Security  30/04/2013
Ms K Bogosing  Employer Trustee - Botswana Prisons Service  19/02/2015
Mr A Gabana  Member Trustee - BTU  08/12/2016
Mr M O Gabobake  Alternate Member Trustee - BOPEU  19/02/2015
Dr E L Halabi  Alternate Employer Trustee - Mianistry of Health and 
 Wellness  28/08/2013
Ms D Joel  Member Trustee - NALCGPWU  17/06/2015
Mr M Keaja  Alternate Employer Trustee - Ministry of Local 
 Government and Rural Development 01/10/2013
Mr I Kenosi  Member Trustee - BTU  19/02/2015  13/07/2016
Brig. K M Kgaswanyane Alternate Employer Trustee - Botswana
  Defence Force  18/08/2016
Ms C Kgomanyane Alternate Pensioner Trustee - BCSPA  10/04/2012
Ms L Likokoto  Alternate Employer Trustee - Ministry of Finance and
 Economic Development 30/04/2013  31/07/2016
Dr K C S Malefho  Employer Trustee - National Strategy Office  30/04/2013
Mr I Mannathoko  Alternate Member Trustee - BOSETU  19/02/2015
Mr S Mantswe       Employer Trustee - Botswana Police Service   30/04/2013 
Ms R Maphorisa  Employer Trustee - Directorate of Public Service 
 Management  04/11/2016
Mr T Marenga  Member Trustee - BOPEU  19/01/2010
Mr K C Modukanele  Member Trustee - BOSETU  17/06/2015
Mr A Mokento  Alternate Employer Trustee - Botswana Prisons Service  19/02/2015
Mr D K C Mokwape  Alternate Member Trustee - BLLAWU  22/05/2010
Ms B V Molefe  CEO/Principal Officer  01/07/2015
Mr M Monnatsie  Alternate Member Trustee - BTU  19/02/2015  13/07/2016
Mr A Motsamai  Member Trustee - BOPEU  22/02/2007
Mr K M N Motshegwa  Member Trustee - BLLAWU  22/04/2011
Mr M Motshegwa  Alternate Member Trustee - BOSETU  07/12/2016
Mr V Mothoka  Alternate Member Trustee - NALCGPWU  13/03/2017
Ms K Moruti  Alternate Employer Trustee - Botswana Police Service  30/04/2013
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Board of Trustees

Name  Designation  Appointed  Resigned

Mr I Moshabi  Alternate Member Trustee - BOPEU  19/02/2015
Brigadier C Nkele  Employer Trustee - Botswana Defence Force  05/06/2013
Mr B Ntswakae  Alternate Member Trustee - NALCGPWU  17/06/2015
Mr B Otsile  Member Trustee - NALCGPWU  17/06/2015
Ms E Peloetletse  Employer Trustee - Ministry of Finance and Economic 
 Development  01/10/2013
Mr K S Ramokate  Alternate Empolyer Trustee - Ministry of Youth 
 Empowerment, Sports & Culture Development 13/09/2013
Mr T Rari  Member Trustee - BOSETU  30/11/2014
Ms N Ratsoma  Alternate Member Trustee - BTU  19/02/2015
Ms R N Sennanyana  Alternate Employer Trustee - Ministry of Employment, 
 Labour, Productivity and Skills Development 18/08/2016
Mr D I S Selebogo  Pensioner Trustee - BCSPA  04/03/2008
Mr J P S Tshukudu  Member Trustee - BTU  19/02/2015
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Statement of responsibility by the board of trustees 
and the principal officer

The Board of Trustees and the Principal Officer of Botswana Public Officers Pension Fund are responsible for the 
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and all other information presented therewith. 
Their responsibility includes the maintenance of true and fair financial records and the preparation of annual 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the rules of the fund and the 
provisions of the Pension and Provident Funds Act, 1987.

The fund’s administrator maintains systems of internal control which are designed to provide reasonable assurance 
that the records accurately reflect its transactions and to provide protection against serious misuse or loss of fund 
assets. The Board of Trustees along with the Principal Officer are responsible for the implementation, maintenance 
and monitoring of these systems of internal control. Nothing has come to the attention of the Trustees or the 
Principal Officer to indicate that any significant breakdown in the functioning of these systems has occurred 
during the year under review.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statements. The Board of Trustees 
have no reason to believe that the fund will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts 
and available cash resources.

Our external auditors conduct an examination of the annual financial statements in conformity with International 
Standards on Auditing, which include tests of transactions and selective tests of internal accounting controls. 
Regular meetings are held between the Board of Trustees, the fund administrator and our external auditors to 
review matters relating to internal controls and financial reporting. The external auditors have unrestricted access 
to the Board of Trustees.

Approval of financial statements
The annual financial statements set out on page, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the board of trustees on 16 February 2018 and were signed on their behalf by:

Chairman       Principal Officer
Gaborone

16 February 2018
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Opinion

We have audited the Financial 
Statements of Botswana Public 
Officers’ Pension Fund (“the Fund”)
set out on pages 43 to 84, which 
comprise the statement of assets 
available for benefits as at 31 March 
2017, the statement of changes in 
net assets available for benefits and 
the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory 
information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance 
with International Standards on 
Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are 
further described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent 
of the Fund in accordance with 
the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the IESBA Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for 
the other information. The other 
information comprises the General 
Information and the Statement 
of Responsibility by the board of 
trustees and the principal officer, 
which we obtained prior to the date 
of this report. Other information 
does not include the financial 
statements and our auditors’ report 
thereon. Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of 
the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so consider 
whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Trustees 
for the Financial Statements

The Trustees are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards and for such internal 
control as the Trustees determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Annual Financial 
Statements, the Trustees are 
responsible for assessing the Fund’s 
ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the Trustees 
either intend to liquidate the Fund 
or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Annual 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain 
reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditors' 
report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted 
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in accordance ISAs will always 
detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance 
with  ISAs, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of 

material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

•Obtain an understanding of 
internal control relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Fund’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness 
of the management's use of the 
going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the 
Fund’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditors' report. 
However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Fund 
to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the 
financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether 
the financial s t a t e m e n t s 

r e p r e s e n t  t h e  underlying 
transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with those charged 
wi th  gove rnance  rega rd ing, 
among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, 
i n c l u d i ng  any  significant 
deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.

_______________________

KPMG
AG Devlin
Partner.
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Figures in Pula  Note(s)  2017  2016

Members’ statutory contributions   629,324,819  600,006,103
Employers contributions   1,899,282,291  1,807,195,254
Members’ voluntary contributions   3,690,196  3,076,730
Transfer in from other funds   1,651,430  824,006
Transfer in - Botswana Government   -  351,245,627
Contributions - Unallocated   3,909,352   -
Revenue   2,537,858,088  2,762,347,720
Other income   -   -
Cost of sales   -   -
Total income from members and employer  3  2,537,858,088  2,762,347,720

Rental income   24,661,071  20,228,929
(Loss)/Profit on disposal of investments  4  (47,847,021 )  4,918,702,161
Interest income  5  584,616,557  654,628,752
Dividend income  6  937,524,873  762,474,853
Other income   3,942,756  4,532,919
Total income from investments   1,502,898,236  6,360,567,614
Net fair value gain/(loss) from financial instruments  7  1,724,532,153  (3,775,028,371 )
  -  -
Net gain from investments   3,227,430,389  2,585,539,243

Management expenses  8  (445,835,179 )  (392,828,949 )
Total surplus before benefits   5,319,453,298  4,955,058,014

Monthly pensions   (505,858,492 )  (497,545,533 )
Lump sums accrued on withdrawal   (112,200,433 )  (58,207,244 )
Lump sums accrued on retirement   (1,060,710,907 )  (1,703,249,353 )
Lump sums accrued on death   (173,585,389 )  (179,408,945 )
Total benefits to members   (1,852,355,221 )  (2,438,411,075 )

Movement in pension fund account  9  (224,555,100 )  (56,527,845 )
  3,242,542,977  2,460,119,094

Transfers for the year
Movement in reserve account  10  (29,450,548 )  99,428,445

Net fund surplus for the year   3,213,092,429  2,559,547,539
Members funds at beginning of the year   46,429,607,364  43,870,059,825
Members funds at year end   49,642,699,793  46,429,607,364

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Available for Benefits
for the year ended 31 March 2017
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Figures in Pula  Note(s)  2017   2016

Assets
Property, plant and equipment  12  11,315,539   8,507,611
Investments  13  57,921,201,776   54,585,240,806
Accounts receivables   6,894,883   10,659,042
Cash and cash equivalents  15  581,348,086   412,928,603
Total Assets   58,520,760,284   55,017,336,062

Funds, Reserves and Liabilities
Funds and Reserves
Active and deferred members’ fund account   49,642,699,793   46,429,607,364
Reserve account  10  1,199,505,333   1,170,054,785
  50,842,205,126   47,599,662,149

Liabilities
Pensioners’ fund account - With profit pensioners  9  4,864,212,547   4,800,135,155
Pensioners’ fund account - Non-profit pensioners  9  1,801,380,110   1,640,902,402
Benefits payable  16  984,986,073   960,229,357
Accounts payable   27,976,428   16,406,999
Total Liabilities   7,678,555,158   7,417,673,913

Equities   50,842,205,126   47,599,662,149
Liabilities   7,678,555,158   7,417,673,913
Total Funds, Reserves and Liabilities   58,520,760,284   55,017,336,062

Statement of Assets Available for Benefits
as at 31 March 2017
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Figures in Pula  Note(s)  2017  2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Surplus for the year before transfer to reserves   3,242,542,977  2,460,119,094

Adjustments for:
Profit on disposal of investments   47,847,021  (4,918,702,161 )
Unrealised net (gain)/loss from investment securities   (1,724,532,153 )  3,775,028,371
Depreciation and amortisation   3,441,910  2,787,029
Lump sums accrued on withdrawal   112,200,433  58,207,244
Monthly pensions   505,858,492  497,545,533
Lump sums accrued on retirement   1,060,710,907  1,703,249,353
Lump sums accrued on death   173,585,389  179,408,945
Realised loss on disposal of investments   (47,847,021 )  -

Changes in working capital:
Movement in accounts receivables   3,764,159  (1,904,011 )
Movement in member transfer value receivable   -  428,181,375
Movement in pension liabilities   224,555,100  56,527,845
Movements in accounts payable   11,569,429  (12,987,744 )
Monthly pensions   (505,858,492 )  (497,545,533 )
Lump sum payments on death   (95,067,888 )  (150,522,679 )
Lump sum payments on withdrawal   (37,409,291 )  (44,793,121 )
Lump sum payments on retirement   (1,189,262,835 )  (1,648,692,227 )

Net cash generated from operating activities   1,786,098,137  1,885,907,313

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  12  (6,275,164 )  (5,294,881 )
Sale of property, plant and equipment  12  25,326  -
Purchase of investments   (3,335,960,976 )  (23,387,656,379 )
Proceeds from sale of investments   1,724,532,159  21,654,856,405

Net cash from investing activities   (1,617,678,655 )  (1,738,094,855 )

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents   168,419,482  147,812,458
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   412,928,603  265,116,145

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  15  581,348,085  412,928,603

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2017
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2017

1. Reporting entity

Botswana Public Officers’ Pension 
Fund is an approved Pension 
Fund registered and domiciled in 
Botswana under the Pensions and 
Provident Fund Act, 1987.

The investment activities of the 
Fund are managed by various 
Fund Managers as outlined in the 
General Information section and 
the administration of the Fund 
was delegated to Alexander Forbes 
Financial Services (Pty) Ltd up to 31 
May 2016 when it was insourced as 
described in note 20.

1.1 Basis of accounting

The financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”).

The financial statements of the 
Fund were authorised for issue 
by the Board of Trustees on 16 
February 2018.

1.2 Functional and 
presentation currency

These financial statements are 
presented in Botswana Pula, which 
is the Fund’s functional currency. 
“Functional currency” is the currency 
of the primary environment in which 
the Fund operates. If indicators of 
the primary economic environment 
are mixed, then management uses 
its judgement to determine the 
functional currency that most 
faithfully represents the economic
effect of the underlying transactions, 

events and conditions. The majority 
of the Fund’s investments and 
transactions are denominated in 
Pula. Pension contributions and 
benefits paid out are determined 
on net assets value, received and 
paid out in Pula. A significant 
amount of the expenses, including 
management fees, custodian 
fees and administration fees, are 
denominated and paid out in Pula. 
Accordingly, management has 
determined the functional currency 
of the Fund is Pula.

All amounts are rounded to the 
nearest Pula, unless otherwise 
indicated.

1.3  Use of estimates and 
judgements

In preparing the annual financial 
statements, management has 
made judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. 
Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to estimates are 
recognised prospectively.

Information about assumptions 
and estimation uncertainty that 
have a significant risk of resulting 
in a material adjustment in the 
year ended 31 March 2017 is 
included in Note 13 and relates to 
the determination of fair values 

of financial instruments with 
significant unobservable inputs. 
Critical accounting judgements and 
estimates are further described in 
significant accounting policy 1.17 
relating to the fair value of unlisted 
equity instruments.

1.4 Benefits payable

Benefits payable are accounted for 
on the accrual basis and include all 
valid claims notified to the Fund 
during the financial year.

Benefits include lump sum payments 
on withdrawal, death and retirement.

When a member retires from service 
after reaching retirement age, one 
third of the balance accrued in 
the member account is paid in the 
form of cash as lump sum payment 
on retirement. The balance is 
transferred into an annuity account 
either within the Fund or to an 
external annuity provider, in which 
case this is classified as lump sum 
payment on withdrawal.

Lump sum entitlements are accounted 
for on the accrual basis when the 
member becomes entitled thereto 
through compliance with the rules 
of the Fund.

The Fund operates two types 
of annuities, vis participating 
annuities and non-participating 
annuities and payments made out 
of these annuities are disclosed as 
monthly pensions in the statement 
of changes in net assets available 
for benefits.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

1.4 Benefits payable [continued]

Participating (with profit) annuities

The liabilities are equated to the 
fair value of the retrospectively 
accumulated underlying assets. This 
is equivalent to the best estimate 
prospective liability calculation 
allowing for future investment 
returns. Members’ entitlements 
emerge in line with return on 
investments less expenses incurred 
consistent with work done and risk 
borne over the lifetime of annuities.

Non-participating annuity business

Non-par t i c i pat ing  annu i t y 
instalments and future expenses 
in respect of these instalments are 
discounted at market interest rates 
based on the bond yield curve at 
the valuation date, reduced by the 
prescribed and additional margin, 
as well as investment management 
expenses. All profits or losses accrue 
to the members when incurred.

Annuities are paid to members 
in the form of monthly pensions, 
which are accounted for on the 
accrual basis.

1.5 Financial assets and 
financial liabilities

Classification

The Fund classifies its financial 
assets and financial liabilities in the 
following categories:

•at fair value through profit or 
loss: debt securities and equity 
investments.

•loans and receivables: cash 
and cash equivalents. The 
Fund’s loans and receivables 
comprise ‘transfers receivables’, 
‘contribution receivable’ and 
‘cash and cash equivalents’ in 
the statement of funds and net 
assets. Management determines 
the classification of its financial 
assets at initial recognition.

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial 
liabilities are initially recognised on 
the trade date, which is the date 
on which the Fund becomes party 
to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Other financial assets 
and liabilities are recognised on the 
date on which they are originated.

Financial assets and financial 
liabilities are recognised at fair 
value, with transaction costs 
recognised in surplus for the year.
‘Fair value’ is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement 
date in the principal or, in its 
absence, the most advantageous 
market to which the Fund has 
access at that date. The fair value 
of a liability reflects its non-
performance risk.

When available, the Fund measures 
the fair value of an instrument using 
the quoted price in an active market 
for that instrument. A market is 
regarded as ‘active’ if transactions 
for the asset or liability take place 
with sufficient frequency and volume 
to provide pricing information on an 
ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an 
active market, then the Fund uses 
valuation techniques that maximise 
the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimise the use of 
unobservable inputs. The chosen 
valuation technique incorporates 
all of the factors that market 
participants would take into account 
in pricing a transaction.

The Fund recognises transfers 
between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy as at the end of the 
reporting period during which the
change has occurred.

Impairment

The Fund assesses at each 
reporting date whether there is 
objective evidence that a financial 
asset or group of financial assets 
is impaired. A financial asset or 
a group of financial assets is 
‘impaired’ if there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result 
of one or more events that occurred 
after the initial recognition of the 
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss 
event (or events) had an impact 
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

Impairment
[continued]

on the estimated future cash flows 
of the financial asset or group 
of financial assets that can be 
estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial 
assets are impaired includes 
significant financial difficulty of 
the borrower or issuer, default 
or delinquency by a borrower or 
issuer, restructuring of the amount 
due on terms that the Fund would 
not otherwise consider, indications 
that a borrower or issuer will enter 
bankruptcy, or adverse changes in 
the payment status of the borrowers.

Derecognition

The Fund derecognises a financial 
asset when the contractual rights 
to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows in 
a transaction in which substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred or in which the 
Fund neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership and does not 
retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial 
asset, the difference between the 
carrying amount of the asset (or 
the carrying amount allocated to 
the portion of the asset that is 
derecognised) and the consideration 

received (including any new asset 
obtained less any new liability 
assumed) is recognised in surplus. 
Any interest in such transferred 
financial assets that is created or 
retained by the Fund is recognised 
as a separate asset or liability.

The Fund enters into transactions 
whereby it transfers assets 
recognised on its statement of 
assets available for benefits, but 
retains either all or substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of the 
transferred assets or a portion of 
them. If all or substantially all of 
the risks and rewards are retained, 
then the transferred assets are not 
derecognised. Transfers of assets 
with retention of all or substantially 
all of the risks and rewards include 
sale and repurchase transactions.

The Fund derecognises a financial 
liability when its contractual 
obligations are discharged, or 
cancelled, or expire.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial 
liabilities are offset and the net 
amount presented in the statements 
of assets available for benefits 
when, and only when, the Fund has 
a legal right to offset the amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis or realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 
Income and expenses are presented 
on a net basis for gains and losses 
from financial instruments and 
foreign exchange gains and losses.

Specific instruments

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise 
deposits with banks and highly liquid 
financial assets with maturities of 
three months or less from the date 
of acquisition that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in their 
fair value and are used by the Fund
in the management of short-term 
commitments, other than cash 
collateral provided in respect of 
derivatives and securities borrowing 
transactions.

1.6 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies 
are translated in Pula at the 
exchange rate at the dates of the 
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies 
are retranslated to Pula at the 
exchange rate at the reporting date. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies 
are retranslated into Pula at the 
exchange rate at the date on which 
the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising 
from retranslation are recognised 
as a component of net gain/loss 
from financial instruments in the 
Fund’s Statement of Changes in Net 
Assets Available for Benefits.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for 
use in the provision of services, 
or for administrative purposes, 
are stated in the statement of 
assets available for benefits at 
cost or, where applicable, at their 
revalued amounts, being the fair 
value at the date of revaluation, 
less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses. 
Any revaluation increase arising on 
the revaluation of such land and 
buildings is recognised in surplus 
under the heading net gain/loss 
from financial instruments. Properties 
in the course of construction, 
production, rental or administrative 
purposes or for purposes not yet 
determined are carried at cost, less 
any recognised impairment loss. 
Cost includes professional fees and, 
for qualifying assets, borrowing 
costs are capitalized in accordance 
with the Fund’s accounting policy. 
Depreciation of these assets 
commences when the assets are 
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is charged so as to 
write off the cost or valuation of 
assets, other than freehold land and 
properties under construction, over 
their estimated useful lives, using 
the straight-line method. Each part 
of property, plant and equipment 
with a cost that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the item 
is depreciated separately. Freehold 
land is not depreciated.

The residual value of each part of 
property, plant and equipment, if not 
insignificant, is reassessed annually. 
The useful lives of property, plant 
and equipment items is reassessed 
annually. Repairs and maintenance 
costs are charged to statement of 
changes in net assets available for 
benefits during the financial period 
in which these costs are incurred. 
The cost of a major renovation is 
included in the carrying amount of 
an asset where it is probable that 
future economic benefits in excess 
of the originally assessed standard 
of performance of the existing asset 
will flow to the company. Major 
renovations are depreciated over 
the remaining useful life of the 
related asset.

Gains and losses on disposal are 
determined by comparing proceeds 
with the carrying amounts and 
included in surplus/deficit.

The depreciation rates applicable are:

Item  Depreciation  Depreciation rate
 method

Leasehold property  Straight line  Duration of the lease  
Furniture and fixtures  Straight line  20%
Motor vehicles  Straight line  25%
Office equipment  Straight line  20%
IT equipment  Straight line  33%
Computer software  Straight line  33%

1.8 Accounts Receivables

Receivables are amounts due 
from participating employer and 
other third parties. They are 
initially recognised at fair value 
and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less provision for 
impairment.

1.9 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related 
if one party has the ability to 
control the other party or exercise 
significant influence over the other 
in making financial or operating 
decisions. A number of transactions 
are entered into with related parties 
in the normal course of business. 
These transactions are carried out 
under normal commercial terms 
and conditions at market rates, as
summarised in the notes to the 
financial statements.

49



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

1.10 Investment property

Investment properties are land 
and/or buildings which are owned 
or held under a leasehold interest 
to earn rental income and/or 
for capital appreciation, and for 
which, the Fund does not occupy a 
significant portion. Property that is 
being constructed or developed for 
future use as investment property 
is classified as investment property. 
Investment properties are initially
measured at cost and subsequently 
at fair value with any change 
therein recognised in the statement 
of changes in net assets available 
for benefits. These valuations are 
performed in accordance with the 
guidance issued by the International 
Valuation Standards Committee and 
are prepared or reviewed periodically 
by independent external valuers.

The fair value of investment 
properties reflects, among other 
things, rental income from current 
leases and assumptions about 
rental income from future leases 
in the light of current market 
conditions. The fair value also 
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash 
outflows that could be expected in 
respect of the properties. Any gain 
or loss arising from a change in 
fair value or from the retirement or 
disposal of an investment property 
is recognised in the statement of 
changes in net assets available for 
benefits.

Subsequent costs are included in the 
asset’s carrying amount only when 
it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item 

will flow to the Fund and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. 
All other repairs and maintenance 
costs are expensed during the 
financial period in which they are 
incurred. When the Fund holds a 
property interest under an operating 
lease to earn rental income and/or 
for capital appreciation, the interest 
is classified and accounted for as an
investment property on a property-
by-property basis. Any such 
property interest which has been 
classified as an investment property 
is accounted for as if it were held 
under a finance lease and the same 
accounting policies are applied to 
that interest as are applied to other 
investment properties leased under 
finance leases.

If an investment property becomes 
owner-occupied, it is reclassified 
as property, plant and equipment 
and its fair value at the date of 
reclassification becomes its carrying 
value for accounting purposes. 
Investment property that is being 
redeveloped for continued future use 
as investment property, continues 
to be measured at fair value and is 
not reclassified as property, plant
and equipment during the 
redevelopment.

1.11 Contributions

Contributions from both the 
employer and the employee are 
accounted as and when received 
by the Fund. Members’ statutory 
contributions consists of 5% of 
the members’ pensionable salary. 
Employer contributions consists 
of 15% of the pensionable salary 

of the Fund’s members. Members 
are also allowed to make voluntary 
contributions to the Fund.

1.12 Transfers

Transfers in - other funds
Transfers in from other funds relate 
to new members joining the Fund 
on attainment of employment 
with the Government of Botswana. 
These are recognised when the 
transfer values have been certified 
by the actuaries and agreed by the 
respective employer agencies. 

Transfers in - Government 
of Botswana 
Government transfers are recognised 
when the Fund has accepted 
liability of the new members being 
transferred from other Government 
pension plans. Liability is accepted 
when the actuarial valuation of 
the transfer amount is carried out 
and the amount has been agreed 
upon between the Government of 
Botswana and the Fund.

1.13 Interest

Interest income is recognised in 
surplus for the year, using the 
effective interest method. The 
effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated 
future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial 
instrument (or, when appropriate, 
a shorter period) to the carrying 
amount of the financial instrument 
on initial recognition. When 
calculating the effective interest 
rate, the Fund estimates future cash 

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 /17

Annual Financial Statements

50



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

flows considering all contractual 
terms of the financial instrument, 
but not future credit losses

1.14 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in 
surplus for the year on the date on 
which the right to receive payment 
is established. For quoted equity 
securities, this is usually the ex-
dividend date. For unquoted equity 
securities, this is usually the date 
on which the shareholders approve 
the payment of a dividend.

1.15 Rental income

Rental income from investment 
property is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Lease 
incentives granted are recognised as 
an integral part of the total rental 
income, over the term of the lease.

1.16 Net gain/loss from financial 
instruments

Net gain or loss from financial 
instruments is calculated using the 
average cost method and includes 
all realised and unrealised fair 
value changes and foreign exchange 
differences, but excludes interest 
and dividend income.

1.17 Critical accounting estimates 
and judgements

The Fund makes estimates and 
assumptions concerning the future. 
The resulting accounting estimates 
will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The 
estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are 
outlined below.

(a) Basis for determining fair values                                     
of investments

The fair values of quoted 
investments in active markets are 
based on bid price. If the market for 
a financial asset is not active, the 
Fund establishes fair value by using 
valuation techniques. These include 
the use of recent arm’s length 
transactions, discounted cash 
flow analysis and other valuation 
techniques commonly used by 
market participants.

DECI/Mascom Wireless Valuation

The most significant private 
equity investment held by the 
Fund relates to the investment in 
Mascom Wireless Botswana (Pty) 
Limited through Deci Investments 
(Pty) Limited. In March 2017 the 
trustees of the Fund engaged Imara 
Corporate Finance, an independent 
firm with experience in valuing 
companies in the telecom sector, to 
value Mascom Wireless Botswana 
(Pty) Limited for purposes of 
determining an appropriate fair 
value for financial reporting.

For the purpose of the independent 
valuation, the valuator utilised the 
discounted free cash flow valuation 
model, with key assumptions relating 
to the discount rate (15.8%), the 
terminal growth rate (8%) and the 
2024 mobile saturation penetration
rate at 172%. Discount rate is 
defined as the weighted average 
cost of capital of Mascom Wireless 

Botswana (Pty) Limited. In arriving at 
this rate, the valuator has considered 
the terminal growth rate, risk free 
rate, market risk premium and cost 
of debt. Terminal growth rate is the 
rate at which the profitability of 
Mascom Wireless Botswana (Pty) 
Limited is expected to grow into the 
future and this is estimated after 
taking into consideration inflation 
and GDP growth rate forecasts. The 
saturation penetration represents 
the estimated mobile subscribers 
as a percentage of total population. 
Any changes in the former two of
these estimates could have an 
impact on the resulting valuation.

PUMA Energy Botswana Valuation

The valuation of PUMA Energy 
Botswana was conducted by Grant 
Thornton. A discounted cashflow 
methodology was used to value the 
investment.

The main contributor to the fall in 
valuation compared to the purchase 
price was the introduction of lack 
of marketability discount factor of 
17.5%. Marketability discount factor 
is a further discount that is added 
over and above the small company
premium. This further discounting 
is mainly on discounting the value 
of the asset for lack of prospect of a 
listing, the frequency of transactions 
in ordinary shares and the degree of 
specialization.

The table below shows the sensitivity 
analysis on valuation on critical 
estimates used in discounted free 
cash flow model.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

1.17 Critical accounting estimates and judgements [continued]

2017                  Existing value            Value resulting from changes in
                      discount rate        terminal growth rate

  (+) 2%  (-) 2%  (+) 2%  (-) 2%
 P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
DECI Investments (Pty) Ltd  2,000,000  1,983,600  2,421,600  2,232,400  2,121,200
 
  (+) 2%  (-) 2%  (+) 2%  (-) 2%
 P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
Puma Energy Botswana (Pty) Ltd  181,100  144,697  239,371  225,052  153,998
 2,181,100  2,128,297  2,660,971  2,457,452  2,275,198

2016                  Existing value            Value resulting from changes in
                      discount rate        terminal growth rate

  (+) 2%  (-) 2%  (+) 2%  (-) 2%
 P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
DECI Investments (Pty) Ltd  1,638,390  1,433,405  1,978,112  1,819,479  1,531,291

0b) Principal actuarial assumptions used for “with profit” pensioner liability valuation
      
    2017  2016
Pensioner mortality rates     *  *
Inflation     3.00 %  3.39 %
Pension increase     2.38 %  2.72 %

Post retirement mortality experience follows 90% of the a(55) tables for both males and females with age 
adjustments of zero years and -2 years (2016: P zero years and -2 years) for males and females respectively.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

2. New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the Fund has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the 
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation:  Effective date: Expected impact:
 Years beginning 
  on or after

• Amendment to IFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of 01 January 2016  These amendments did
 Interests in Joint Operations  not have any impact on the
   Fund’s financial
   statements.

• Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of 01 January 2016  These amendments did
 Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation  not have any impact on the
   Fund’s financial
   statements.

• Amendment to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate 01 January 2016  These amendments did
 Financial Statements  not have any impact on the
   Fund’s financial statements.

• IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts  01 January 2016  These amendments did
   not have any impact on the
   Fund’s financial
   statements.

• Amendments to IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 28: Investment 01 January 2016  These amendments did
 Entities. Applying the consolidation exemption  not have any impact on the
   Fund’s financial
   statements.

• Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41: Agriculture:  01 January 2016  These amendments did
 Bearer Plants  not have any impact on the
   Fund’s financial
   statements.

• Amendment to IFRS 5: Non-current Assets Held for 01 January 2016  The adoption of this
 Sale and Discontinued Operations: Annual Improvements  amendment has no impact
 project  on the results of the Fund.
   All assets are designated
   at fair value through profit
   and loss.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

Standard/ Interpretation:  Effective date: Expected impact:
 Years beginning 
  on or after

• Amendment to IFRS 7: Financial Instruments:  01 January 2016  The impact of the
 Disclosures: Annual Improvements project  amendment is not
   material. The Fund
   provides disclosures in the
   financial statements.

• Amendment to IAS 19: Employee Benefits: Annual 01 January 2016  These amendments did
 Improvements project  not have any impact on the
   Fund’s financial
   statements.

• Disclosure Initiative: Amendment to IAS 1: Presentation 01 January 2016  These amendments did
 of Financial Statements  not have any impact on the
   Fund’s financial
   statements.

• Amendment to IAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting. 01 January 2016  These amendments did
 Annual Improvements project  not have any impact on the
   Fund’s financial
   statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 /17

Annual Financial Statements

54



Notes to the Annual Financial Statements [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

2. New Standards and 
Interpretations [continued]

2.2 Standards and interpretations 
not yet effective

The Fund has chosen not to early 
adopt the following standards and 
interpretations, which have been 
published and are mandatory for 
the Fund’s accounting periods 
beginning on or after 01 April 2017 
or later periods:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 
introduced new requirements for 
the classification and measurements 
of financial assets. IFRS 9 was 
subsequently amended in October 
2010 to include requirements for 
the classification and measurement 
of financial liabilities and for 
derecognition, and in November 2013 
to include the new requirements for 
general hedge accounting.

Another revised version of IFRS 9 
was issued in July 2014 mainly to 
include a)impairment requirements 
for financial assets and b) limited 
amendments to the classification 
and measurement requirements by 
introducing a “fair value through 
other comprehensive income” 
(FVTOCI) measurement category for 
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

•All recognised financial assets 
that are within the scope of 
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement 
are required to be subsequently 
measured at amortised cost 
or fair value. Specifically, debt 
investments that are held 
within a business model whose 
objective is to collect the 
contractual cash flows, and that 
have contractual cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the outstanding 
principal are generally measured 
at amortised cost at the end of 
subsequent reporting periods. 
Debt instruments that are held 
within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets, and 
that have contractual terms of 
the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal 
and interest on outstanding 
principal, are measured at 
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity 
investments are measured at fair 
value at the end of subsequent 
reporting periods. In addition, 
under IFRS 9, entities may make 
an irrevocable election to present 
subsequent changes in the fair 
value of an equity investment 
(that is not held for trading) in 
other comprehensive income with 
only dividend income generally 
recognised in statement of 
changes in net assets available 
for benefits.

• With regard to the measurement 
of financial liabilities designated 
as at fair value through IFRS 
9 requires that the amount 
of change in the fair value of 
the financial liability that is 
attributable to changes in the 
credit risk of the liability is 
presented in other comprehensive 
income, unless the recognition 
of the effect of the changes of 
the liability’s credit risk in other 
comprehensive income would 
create or enlarge an accounting 
mismatch in profit or loss. Under 
IAS 39, the entire amount of 
the change in fair value of a 
financial liability designated as 
at fair value through profit or 
loss is presented in statement of 
changes in net assets available 
for benefits.

• In relation to the impairment of 
financial assets, IFRS 9 requires 
an expected credit loss model, 
as opposed to an incurred 
credit loss model under IAS 39. 
The expected credit loss model 
requires an entity to account 
for expected credit losses and 
changes in those expected credit 
losses at each reporting date to 
reflect changes in credit risk since 
initial recognition. It is therefore 
no longer necessary for a credit 
event to have occurred before 
credit losses are recognised.

• The new general hedge accounting 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

requirements retain the three 
types of hedge accounting 
mechanisms currently available 
in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater 
flexibility has been introduced 
to the types of transactions 
eligible for hedge accounting, 
specifically broadening the types 
of instruments that qualify for 
hedging instruments and the 
types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible 
for hedge accounting. In addition, 
the effectiveness test has been 
replaced with the principal of 
an “economic relationship”. 
Retrospective assessment of hedge 
effectiveness is also no longer 
required. Enhanced disclosure 
requirements about an entity’s 
risk management activities have 
also been introduced.

The effective date of the standard is 
for years beginning on or after 01 
January 2018.

The Fund expects to adopt the 
standard for the first time in the 
2019 annual financial statements.

The impact of this standard is 
currently being assessed.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 
Construction contracts; IAS 18 
Revenue; IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty 
Programmes; IFRIC 15 Agreements 
for the construction of Real Estate; 
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from 
Customers and SIC 31 Revenue 
- Barter Transactions Involving 
Advertising Services.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is 
that an entity recognises revenue 
to depict the transfer of promised 
goods or services to customers 
in an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the entity 
expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. An entity 
recognises revenue in accordance 
with that core principle by applying 
the following steps:

•Identify the contract(s) with a 
customer 

•Identi f y the performance 
obligations in the contract 

•Determine the transaction price

•Allocate the transaction price to 
the performance obligations in 
the contract

•Recognise revenue when (or as) 
the entity satisfies a performance 
obligation.

IFRS 15 also includes extensive new 
disclosure requirements.

The effective date of the standard is 
for years beginning on or after 01 
January 2018.

The Fund expects to adopt the 
standard for the first time in the 
2019 annual financial statements.
The impact of this standard is 
currently being assessed.

3. Contributions

Contributions received comprise 
of employer’s (Government of 
Botswana) contributions at 15% 
of pensionable salary, members’ 
contributions at 5% of pensionable 
salary and additional voluntary 
contr ibut ions by members. 
Transfers in comprise of individual 
transfers from other Pension Funds.

Contributions - unallocated relates 
to contributions received from 
various paypoints with insufficient 
information to match against the 
type of contribution received at year 
end.
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4. (Loss)/Profit on disposal of investments

Figures in Pula   2017  2016

Fleming Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd   (4,557,336 )  271,582,529
Botswana Insurance Fund Management Ltd   (17,196,768 )  72,470,830
Investec Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd   (206,397,709 )  3,893,967,030
Allan Gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd   98,772,018  (14,507,016 )
Coronation Fund Managers (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd   -  60,968
Stanbic Investment Management Services (Pty) Ltd   -  699,184,937
Kgori Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd   19,268,707  22,902,824
African Alliance Botswana Ltd   81,853,316  4,912,945
Harding Loevner   16,935,383  (35,124,384 )
Sarasin & Partners LLP   (36,524,632 )  3,251,498
  (47,847,021 )  4,918,702,161

5. Interest income

Fleming Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd   89,840,854  237,456,317
Botswana Insurance Fund Management Ltd   143,957,189  76,004,270
Investec Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd   62,457,430  67,653,387
Allan Gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd   100,143,705  131,905,915
Capital Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd   -  26,003
Stanbic Investment Management Services (Pty) Ltd   62  40,827
African Alliance Botswana Ltd   76,165,953  80,050,608
Kgori Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd   55,772,465  4,743,576
Interest on call   43,658,323  20,186,827
Interest on Fixed deposit   12,596,640  35,368,063
BPOPF Offshore Limited   -  328,981
Harith General Partners Proprietary Limited   -  4,438
Sarasin & Partners LLP   (174 )  3
Vantage Capital   -  859,537
Messidor - Hilton Project Operational call account   24,110  -
  584,616,557  654,628,752

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

6. Dividend income

Figures in Pula   2017  2016

Fleming Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd   19,231,142  75,531,730
Botswana Insurance Fund Management Ltd   62,597,830  50,514,889
Investec Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd   107,358,211  123,624,445
Allan Gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd   93,144,844  49,457,365
DECI Investments (Pty) Ltd   300,527,479  226,242,836
African Alliance Botswana Ltd   152,037,077  103,296,017
Kgori Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd   114,687,824  57,173,108
Epoch Investment Partners Inc.   -  863,991
Sarasin & Partners LLP   38,419,726  31,162,853
Harding Loevner   49,520,740   44,607,619
  937,524,873  762,474,853

7. Unrealised fair value gains or losses on financial 
   assets at fair value through profit or loss

Fleming Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  123,292,071  (236,589,245 )
Botswana Insurance Fund Management Ltd  (115,976,509 )  118,385,162
Investec Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  878,775,099  (3,980,502,079 )
Allan Gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  (66,699,502 )  147,856,078
Stanbic Investment Management Services (Pty) Ltd  -  (765,860,169 )
African Alliance Botswana Ltd  (400,461,224 )  22,017,642
Afena Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd  (222,931,270 )  (6,700,155 )
DECI Investments (Pty) Ltd  361,609,605  -
Epoch Investment Partners Inc.  -  (228,411,136 )
BPOPF Offshore Limited  734,817,891   607,541,078
Harith General Partners Proprietary Limited  -  (117,078 )
Vontobell Asset Management Inc  -  91,371,935
Sarasin & Partners LLP  (46,515,345 )  104,861,198
Harding Loevner  507,879,066  409,099,255
Vantage Capital  (611,332 )  (1,626,718 )
Transition account  (520,145 )  (56,354,139 )
Capital Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  70,956,630  -
Messidor - Hilton  (182,847 )  -
PUMA Energy Botswana (Pty) Ltd  (98,900,035 )  -
 1,724,532,153  (3,775,028,371 )
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7. Unrealised fair value gains or losses on financial 
   assets at fair value through profit or loss [continued]

Figures in Pula   2017  2016

The total net unrealised gain from investment securities for 
the year arise from investments in;

Local direct investments
Listed equity  (850,567,840 )  (659,826,603)
Bonds  (7,756,567 )  16,929,588
Private equity  333,666,201  -
Investment property  (8,924,078 )  4,028,421
 (533,582,284 )  (638,868,594 )

Off shore direct investments
Listed equity  1,466,251,745  (5,740,446,964 )
Fixed income securities  57,564,946  (102,320,927 )
Cash and near cash instruments  (520,145 )  1,735,513,800
 1,523,296,546  (4,107,254,091 )

Unitised funds
Offshore  734,817,891  971,094,314
 1,724,532,153  (3,775,028,371 )

8. Fund management expenses

Investment management fees paid to asset managers:
Fleming Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  22,667,628  51,189,182
Botswana Insurance Fund Management Ltd  21,881,533  12,308,357
Investec Asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  90,123,682  56,742,872
Allan Gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  29,172,125  24,568,521
African Alliance Botswana Ltd  24,061,138  20,996,398
Kgori Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd  19,415,874  9,334,459
Capital Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  -  7,520,548
Harith General Partners Proprietary Limited  -  2,075,392
BNP Paribas  1,647,768  2,126,843
Vantage Capital  -  5,246,449
BPOPF Offshore Limited  -  5,985,103
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC  1,461,225  -
Messidor  6,136,161  -
Harding Loevner  32,148,577  14,682,410
Messidor - Hilton Development Project  5,107,109  -
Sarasin and Partners LLP  9,115,620  5,221,145
 262,938,440  217,997,679
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

8. Fund management expenses [continued]

Figures in Pula   2017  2016

Other service provider expenses:
Auditor’s Fees  1,429,456  1,660,452
Asset consultancy fees  7,089,293  4,925,117
Actuarial fees  1,615,287  1,523,068
Benefits Administration fees  11,104,053  31,415,251
Asset custody and other fees  58,687,969  44,580,627
Legal expenses  2,103,923  1,517,834
 82,029,981  85,622,349

Secretariat expenses
Advertising  7,697,033  5,540,946
Beverages and refreshments  363,567  563,492
Computer expenses  3,707,079  2,564,211
Postage  2,451,284  1,258,319
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments  3,441,910  2,787,029
Fidelity insurance  424,166  377,306
Motor vehicle expenses  615,133  890,904
Employee costs  51,464,129  37,247,493
Sundry expenses  2,055,801  2,416,263
Consultancy fee  8,870,449  18,108,054
Telephone and fax  2,403,717  2,578,556
Travel and entertainment  5,425,693  4,126,329
Trustees’ remuneration  500,100  627,000
Trustee’s expenses  4,974,608  5,242,466
Workshop expenses  677,219  780,763
Water and electricty  476,590  464,150
Regulator’s (NBFIRA) fees  2,233,447  2,203,930
Bank charges  626,930  61,783
Printing and stationery  2,457,903  1,369,927
 100,866,758  89,208,921
Total expenses  445,835,179  392,828,949
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9. Pension fund account

Figures in Pula   2017  2016

With Profit Pensioners
Balance at beginning of year  4,800,135,155  4,743,709,583
Transfer during the year  446,891,695  417,861,815
Benefits payable  (382,814,303 )  (361,436,243 )
Balance at end of year  4,864,212,547  4,800,135,155

Balance payable within one year  84,720,925  341,055,643
Balance payable after one year  4,779,491,622  4,459,079,512
 4,864,212,547  4,800,135,155

Non Profit Pensioners
Balance at beginning of year  1,640,902,402  1,640,800,129
Transfer during the year  283,521,897  136,211,563
Benefits payable  (123,044,189 )  (136,109,290 )
Balance at end of year  1,801,380,110  1,640,902,402

Balance payable within one year  49,713,204  125,215,788
Balance payable after one year  1,751,666,906  1,515,686,614
 1,801,380,110  1,640,902,402

Rule 4.4.1 requires a Pensions Account to be maintained under the fund and to be credited with the value of the Member’s 
Fund Credit at his/her retirement in respect of those members who elected in terms of the option in Rule 5.3.1 to have their 
pension paid from the Fund, and any amount transferred from the Reserve Account in terms of rule 4.3.1(d).

10. Reserve account

Balance at beginning of year  1,170,054,785  1,269,483,230
Release of reserve  (441,188,023 )  (127,966,631 )
Transfers to data reserve  699,733,496  25,595,475
Foregone benefits transferred (Rule 4.3)  (229,094,925 )  2,942,711
 29,450,548  (99,428,445 )
Balance at end of year  1,199,505,333  1,170,054,785
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

10. Reserve account [continued]

(a) Rule 4.3.1(a) of the fund requires that any amount by which the investment earnings of the fund 
exceed the rate of investment earnings declared by the Trustees (on the advice of the Actuary) should be 
transferred to a Reserve Account.

(b) Rule 4.3.1(b) of the fund requires that forfeited benefits of members who have left the service prematurely 
should be transferred to a Reserve Account.

(c)  Rule 4.3.2 of the fund requires that the amount standing to the credit of the Reserve Account should 
be increased or decreased by the share of the investment earnings of the Fund that the amount in the 
Reserve Account bears to the sum of all accounts standing to the credit of the fund.

Figures in Pula   2017  2016

The reserve account comprises of the following;
Data reserve  1,164,029,570  464,296,073
General reserve  35,475,763  705,758,712
 1,199,505,333  1,170,054,785

Data reserve
The data reserve was created to meet the cost of any losses incurred by the fund due to data errors in underlying 
data of individual members. This reserve is being maintained as there is still some uncertainty with regards to 
certain member fund credits.

General reserve
This reserve decreased significantly as a result of the release of withdrawal profits as a result of a rule amendment.

The general reserve is maintained to provide additional liquidity.

The movements in reserves was updated based on the actuarial report issued in September 2017.

11. Death benefit liability reserve

Rule 6.1 requires that, if a member dies while in service, a lump sum equal to the greater of his/ her annual salary 
or his/her Fund Credit at the date of death is to be paid.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

 2017 2016
 Cost or  Accumulated  Carrying value Cost or  Accumulated  Carrying
 revaluation  depreciation    revaluation  depreciation  value

Leasehold property  201,186  (201,186 )  -  201,186  (201,186 )  -
Furniture and fixtures  5,622,226  (3,172,821 )  2,449,405  4,416,309  (2,686,286 )  1,730,023
Motor vehicles  5,815,000  (3,314,449 )  2,500,551  4,568,452  (2,795,466 )  1,772,986
Office equipment  3,229,308  (1,660,130 )  1,569,178  2,889,301  (1,659,691 )  1,229,610
IT equipment  5,990,818  (3,158,777 )  2,832,041  5,181,484  (1,875,168 )  3,306,316
Computer software  4,012,038  (2,047,674 )  1,964,364  1,848,174  (1,379,498 )  468,676
Total  24,870,576  (13,555,037 )  11,315,539  19,104,906   (10,597,295 )  8,507,611

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017

     Additions    
   Opening  balance  Disposals  Depreciation  Total   

Furniture and fixtures    1,730,023  1,205,917  -  (486,535 )  2,449,405
Motor vehicles    1,772,986  1,246,548  -  (518,983 )  2,500,551
Office equipment    1,229,610  581,829  (19,572 )  (222,689 )  1,569,178
IT equipment    3,306,316  1,077,007  (5,754 )  (1,545,528 )  2,832,041
Computer software    468,676  2,163,863  -  (668,175 )  1,964,364
   8,507,611   6,275,164  (25,326 )  (3,441,910 )  11,315,539

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016

     Opening    

     balance  Additions  Depreciation  Total    

Furniture and fixtures      2,114,248  367,220  (751,445 )  1,730,023
Motor vehicles      1,438,990  866,000  (532,004 )  1,772,986
Office equipment      911,719  707,382   (389,491 )  1,229,610
IT equipment      1,534,802  2,524,679  (753,165 )  3,306,316
Computer software      -  829,600  (360,924 )  468,676
     5,999,759  5,294,881  (2,787,029 )  8,507,611
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13. Investments [continued]

  2017  2016

The following investments exceed 5% of the net assets of the single category investments available for benefits :

Local Equities :
Botswana Insurance Holdings Limited  966,149,372  834,924,766
Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited  777,480,080  621,385,866
First National Bank of Botswana Limited  1,121,540,761  1,443,223,701
Sechaba Brewery Holdings Limited  645,072,006  881,755,573
Letshego Holdings Limited  1,407,146,902  1,485,043,298
Sefalana Holdings Limited  1,226,243,444  1,267,526,230
Choppies Enterprises Limited  792,177,296  1,024,858,936
Turnstar Limited  819,779,711  764,229,884
DECI Investments (Pty) Limited  2,000,000,000  1,638,390,395
Capital Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  534,838,130  -
Puma Energy Botswana (Pty) Ltd  181,100,000  -

Offshore equities :
Investec - Global managed fund  5,587,465,237  5,147,405,632
Investec emerging markets equity fund  3,908,677,763  -

Local fixed interest funds/bonds:
Government of Botswana - BW005 bond  469,735,354  617,141,863
Government of Botswana - BW007 bond  402,798,934  -
Government of Botswana - BW008 bond  707,821,428  698,749,298

Investment property:
Commercial property on portion 116 of Farm Forest Hill No 9- KO  42,510,992  42,950,083
Commercial property on Lots 4787 & 4788, Gaborone  36,969,563  22,261,325
Industrial property on Lot 22041, Gaborone  25,419,404  25,950,420
Commercial property on Lot 1108, Gaborone  83,612,375  80,732,175
Residential property on Lot 4992, Gaborone  -  15,599,777
Commercial property on Lot 61920, Gaborone  82,105,000  81,110,000
Messidor Hilton Development Project  92,100,000  -
Blue Jacket Square  31,359,857  27,730,000
Letplaza Plot 6142 Francistown  44,793,104  43,270,000
Tirelo House Plot 1140-1145  44,369,600  44,000,000
 22,031,266,313  16,808,239,222
Investments below 5% of the net assets of the single category  35,889,935,463  37,777,001,585
investments available for benefits:  
Total investments  57,921,201,776  54,585,240,807
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13. Investments [continued]

 2017   2016

The movement in investments is as follows:
Financial assets
Balance at beginning of year  54,170,161,190   51,429,874,857
Purchases during the year  3,335,960,976   23,371,128,752
Disposals during the year  (1,739,970,732 )  (16,736,154,244)
Changes in fair value  1,649,504,842   (3,894,688,173 )
Balance at end of year  57,415,656,276   54,170,161,192

Investment properties
Balance at beginning of year  415,079,616   278,892,185
Addition during the year  15,438,494   16,527,627
Changes in fair value  75,027,312   119,659,803
Balance at end of year  505,545,422   415,079,615
Total investments  57,921,201,698   54,585,240,807

The following direct investments have been made in debt securities 
issued by the participating employer:
Government of Botswana - BW0 5 bond  469,735,354   617,141,863
Government of Botswana - BW0 7 bond  468,252,135   377,371,853
Government of Botswana - BW0 8 bond  744,674,708   698,749,298
Government of Botswana - BW0 10 bond  -   148,991,436
Government of Botswana - BW0 11 bond  347,913,400   291,730,770
Government of Botswana - BW0 12 bond  92,836,781   53,139,203
 2,123,412,378   2,187,124,423

Various of the unitised investment funds in which the Fund has invested may also hold investments in debt 
securities issued by the participating employer. These are not considered direct investments by the Fund as it has 
no control over the composition of investments in such unitised funds.
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13. Investments [continued]

Valuation methodology
The table below shows the financial assets and liabilities that are recognised and measured at fair value analysed 
by valuation technique.

31 March 201 7  Valuations Valuations Valuations 
 quoted in an based on based on
 active market observable unobservable
 (Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)  Total

Local equities  12,317,228,462  -  2,715,938,130  15,033,166,592
Offshore equities and equity funds  31,495,443,306  90,106,658  -  31,585,549,964
Local fixed interest  8,235,289,846  -  -  8,235,289,846
Offshore bonds  1,547,983,434  -  -  1,547,983,434
Cash and cash equivalents  1,013,666,444  -  -  1,013,666,444
Total financial instruments measured  54,609,611,492  90,106,658  2,715,938,130  57,415,656,280
at fair value 

31 March 2016  Valuations Valuations Valuations 
 quoted in an based on based on
 active market observable unobservable
 (Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)  Total

Local equities  11,608,902,420  -  1,969,771,929  13,578,674,349
Offshore equities and equity funds  29,365,398,952  39,043,053  -  29,404,442,005
Local fixed interest  9,632,722,576 -  -  9,632,722,576
Offshore bonds  1,554,322,262  -  -  1,554,322,262
Total financial instruments measured  52,161,346,210  39,043,053  1,969,771,929  54,170,161,192
at fair value 
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13. Investments [continued]

A description of the nature of the techniques used to calculate valuations based on observable inputs and 
valuations based on unobservable inputs is set out below.

Level 1
Financial instruments for which their valuations are determined by reference to unadjusted traded prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the quoted price is readily available and the price represents 
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2
Financial instruments valued using inputs other than quoted prices as described above for level 1 but which are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3
Financial instruments valued using inputs for the asset or liability, that are not based on observable market data. 
Specific valuation techniques used include discounted cash flow analysis. The principle assumptions used and a 
sensitivity analysis is disclosed as part of critical accounting estimates and judgements.

Transfers between level 1 and level 2

There were no such transfers during the year.

14. Member transfer values receivable

  2017  2016

Balance at beginning of year  -  1,425,917,186
Transfer from Botswana Government  -  (1,425,917,186 )
Unallocated members’ transfer value settlements netted off  -  (997,735,811 )
Unallocated members’ transfer value settled  -  997,735,811
 -  -

This balance represents amounts receivable from the Government of Botswana with respect to cumulative member 
fund credits for services rendered to the Government of Botswana prior to establishment of the Fund. Such 
amounts are actuarially determined upon the member’s transfer into the Fund, and actuarially reviewed based on 
new / updated member information when such information is presented to and verified by the Fund.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

15. Cash and cash equivalents

  2017  2016

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

In current account - Active and deferred members  559,283,322  265,151,620
In current account - With profit pensioners  2,170,324  80,580,671
In current account - Non profit pensioners  685,924  35,227,954
In call and money market accounts - Fund secretariat  (967,189,472 )  31,968,358
In call and money market accounts - held by fund managers  773,494,948  -
In call and money market accounts - Fund investment  212,903,040  -
 581,348,086  412,928,603

The Call accounts maintained with First National Bank Botswana Limited by the Fund earns interest @ 0.30% 
p.a (2016:0.30%) and the money market account maintained with Stanbic Investment Management Services (Pty) 
Limited by the fund secretariat earns interest @ 5.67% p.a (2016: 4.48%).

16. Benefits payable

Withdrawal
Opening balance  54,989,941  41,575,818
Lump sums accrued on withdrawal  112,200,433  58,207,244
Paid during the year  (37,409,291 )  (44,793,121 )
Closing balance  129,781,083  54,989,941

Death
Opening balance  143,126,773  114,240,507
Lump sums accrued on death  173,585,389  179,408,945
Paid during the year  (95,067,888 )  (150,522,679 )
Closing balance  221,644,274  143,126,773

Retirement
Opening balance  762,112,643  707,555,517
Lump sums accrued on retirement  1,060,710,907  1,703,249,353
Paid during the year  (1,189,262,835 )  (1,648,692,227 )
Closing balance  633,560,715  762,112,643

Total benefits payable  984,986,073  960,229,357
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17. Income tax

The Fund is an approved Pension Fund in Botswana and is exempt from taxation under Part 1 of the Income Tax 
Act, 1999. This exemption does not extend to the 7.5% withholding tax deducted at source for dividends.

18. Capital commitments

There were no capital commitments at the end of the current and previous reporting period.

19. Related parties

Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. All related party transactions are 
carried out during the course of activities of the fund.

The Fund was registered as a result of the decision of the Government of Botswana to change the public officers’ 
pension arrangement. The Government is the sole employer.

Transactions with the employer consists of monthly contributions in respect of existing and new employees and 
transfers receivable/payable in respect of members whose transfer balances are recalculated upon receipt of new 
information concerning their employment details.

The Fund has also appointed independent asset managers to manage its investment portfolios. These asset 
managers have decision making ability concerning investment decisions within statutory requirements of the 
Pensions and Provident Funds Act.

  2017  2016

(a) Transactions with employer
Contributions received during the year  1,903,191,643  1,807,195,254
Transfers for the year  1,651,430  824,006
 1,904,843,073  1,808,019,260

(b)  Administration fee
The Fund engaged the services of Alexander Forbes Financial Services Botswana (Pty) Limited to provide 
administrative services for a fee. The fees charged are a fixed rate per member. Total fees for fund administration 
services for the year amounted to P11,104,053 (2016: P 31,415,251). The contract with Alexander Forbes 
Financial Services Botswana (Pty) Ltd was terminated on 31 May 2016 as explained in note 20.
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19. Related parties [continued]

Related party transactions [continued]

(c)  Asset consultancy fee
The Fund entered into an agreement with Novare Consultants with effect 01 February 2013 to obtain 
consultancy services in connection with evaluating investment manager performance, formulating investment 
strategy and investment returns. The fee is agreed at the beginning of the year and during the year under 
review, total fees paid to the asset consultant (including withholding taxes and VAT) amounted to P7,089,293 
(2016: P4,925,117). 

(d)  Board of trustees’ remuneration 
The total remuneration paid to trustees during the year was P500,100 (2016: P627,000) and consisted of only 
fixed trustees’ fees.

(e) Senior management remuneration
The total remuneration paid to Senior Management during the year was P10,299,678 (2016: P10,261,292).

20. Post balance sheet events

The Fund is in the process of in sourcing administration services from Alexander Forbes Financial Services 
Botswana (Pty) Limited. The contract for Alexander Forbes was terminated as of 31 May 2016 and the Fund is in 
the process of acquiring an administrative licence from NBFIRA in its own name.

Following handover by the previous administrators on termination of the said contract, member files, or any 
supporting information, it was noted that the payable amount was P441m which would be investigated further 
in the next financial year.

The Fund issued certificates of existence for the 7,798 pensioners in the records of the Fund to confirm existence 
of members. To date, 6,532 have submitted the certificates of existence whilst 1,266 are outstanding. Capturing of 
information collated from the certificates has been completed in the Fund Administration system. Pensioners who 
have not submitted the certificates will be suspended and reinstated once they have submitted the certificates. 
This exercise is now done annually.

In addition to the above, the Fund is working with the previous administrators to locate the missing files for the 
pensioners who were enrolled by the Fund and has designed an Enrolment Form that will be used going forward 
and completed by the members upon appointment to the Public Service. All the relevant documents will be 
attached and the form signed by Human Resource Department and submitted to the Fund for appropriate record 
keeping. This will ensure enrolment of the rightful members and tracking of contributions.
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21. Fund analysis

Description of the fund
Government of Botswana and its authorised agencies participate in the pension Fund for their eligible employees. 
The Fund is a defined contribution plan.

Accordingly, the Fund’s assets and liabilities are attributed to five main categories.

Active and deferred members
These are members from whom the fund receives monthly contributions and who have not yet attained retirement age.

With profit pensioners
Pensioners whose annual escalations in benefits are determined based on performance of the underlying 
investments.

Without profit pensioners 
Pensioners whose annual escalations in benefits are predetermined and fixed throughout the pension period.

Pre-retirement
These are members nearing retirement age. Those who will retire in no more than three years.

Operations and reserves
Reserves set aside through operation of the Fund’s rules and not yet allocated to individual members’ accounts. 
This category also includes the assets and liabilities of the fund secretariat and cash which has not yet been 
allocated to specific investment funds.
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21. Fund analysis [continued]

31 March 2017 Active and    Pensioners      
 deferred  Pensioners  without  Pre-  Operations  Total
 members  with profit  profit  Retirement  and reserves
 158,174  5,449  2,321   29  -  165,973
Total funds and reserves  P  P  P  P  P  P
Members’ statutory 
contributions  629,324,819  -  -  -  -   629,324,819
Employers’ contributions  1,899,282,291  -  -  -  -  1,899,282,291
Members’ voluntary contributions  3,690,196  -  -  -  -  3,690,196
Transfer in from other funds  1,651,430  -  -  -  -  1,651,430
Other income  3,942,756  -  -  -  -  3,942,756
Contributions - Unallocated  3,909,352  -  -  -  -  3,909,352
Net rental income  24,661,071  -  -  -  -  24,661,071
Profit on disposal of 
investments (42,727,373 )  (648,600 )  (4,471,048 )  -  -  (47,847,021 )
Dividend income  889,101,110  48,423,763  -  -  -  937,524,873
Interest income  369,010,877  140,186,394  69,004,304  2,159,813  4,255,169  584,616,557
Net fair value gain 
from financial instruments  1,667,580,375  45,965,053  10,986,725  -  -  1,724,532,153
Management expenses  (217,158,994 )  (27,349,787 )  (9,776,228 )  -  (191,550,170 )  (445,835,179 )
Monthly pensions  -  (382,814,303 )  (123,044,189 )  -  -  (505,858,492 )
Lump sums accrued 
on withdrawal  (112,200,433 )  -  -  -  -  (112,200,433 )
Lump sums accrued on death  (173,585,389 )  -  -  -  -  (173,585,389 )
Lump sums accrued 
on retirement  (1,060,710,907 )  -  -  -  -  (1,060,710,907 )
 3,885,771,181  (176,237,480 )  (57,300,436 )  2,159,813  (187,295,001 )  3,467,098,077
Transfers directly 
(to)/from reserves  (164,179,480 )  -  -  8,384,520  -  (155,794,960 )
Transfers directly 
(to)/from pension accounts  (122,442,911 )  (27,232,215 )  149,675,125  -  -  -
Inter segment transfer  (381,183,766 )  267,547,087  68,103,019  13,920,559  187,295,001  155,681,855

Movement during the year  3,217,965,024  64,077,392  160,477,708  24,464,892  -  3,466,984,972
Opening fund balance as 
at 1 April 2016  46,429,607,365  4,800,135,155  1,640,902,401  -  1,170,054,785  54,040,699,706
Closing fund balance 
as at 31 March 2017  49,647,572,389  4,864,212,547  1,801,380,109  24,464,892  1,170,054,785  57,507,684,678
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21. Fund analysis [continued]

31 March 2017 Active and    Pensioners      
 deferred  Pensioners  without  Pre-  Operations  Total
 members  with profit  profit  Retirement  and reserves

Net assets allocated to  P  P  P  P  P  P
funds and reserves
Property, plant and equipment  -  -  -  -  11,315,539  11,315,539
Investments  51,312,001,564  4,891,444,766  1,651,704,987  66,050,459  -  57,921,201,776
Accounts receivables  6,894,883  -  -  -  -  6,894,883
Cash and cash equivalents  581,348,086  -  -  -  -  581,348,086

Total assets  51,900,244,533  4,891,444,766  1,651,704,987  66,050,459  11,315,539  58,520,760,284
Benefits payable  984,986,072  -  -  -  -  984,986,072
Accounts payable  27,976,428  -  -  -  -   27,976,428

Total liabilities  1,012,962,500  -   -   -   -   1,012,962,500
Net assets  50,887,282,033  4,891,444,766  1,651,704,987  66,050,459  11,315,539  57,507,797,784

Net funding level - (under) 
/ over funded  1,239,709,644  27,232,219  (149,675,122 )  41,585,567  (1,158,739,246 )  113,106
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21. Fund analysis [continued]

31 March 2016 Active and  Pensioners
 deferred Pensioners without Operations  
 members with profit profit and reserves Total
Number of members 146,623  5,362  2,281  -  154,266

Total funds and reserves  P  P  P  P   P
Members’ statutory contributions  600,006,103  -  -  -  600,006,103
Employers’ contributions  1,807,195,254  -  -  -  1,807,195,254
Members’ voluntary contributions  3,076,730  -  -  -   3,076,730
Transfer in from other funds  824,006  -  -   -   824,006
Transfer in - Botswana Government  351,245,627  -  -  -  351,245,627
Other income  4,532,919  -  -  -  4,532,919
Net rental income  20,228,929  -  -  -  20,228,929
Profit on disposal of investments  4,773,818,126  156,554,464  (11,670,429 )  -  4,918,702,161
Dividend income  723,074,101  39,400,752  -  -  762,474,853
Interest income  430,597,441  135,337,893  88,693,418  -  654,628,752
Net fair value loss from 
financial instruments  (3,428,240,356 )  (311,194,134 )  (35,593,881 )  -  (3,775,028,371 )
Management expenses  (306,541,709 )  (34,703,769 )  (12,846,965 )  (38,736,506 )  (392,828,949 )
Monthly pensions  -  (136,109,290 )  (361,436,243 )  -  (497,545,533 )
Lump sums accrued on withdrawal  (58,207,244 )  -  -  -  (58,207,244 )
Lump sums accrued on death  (179,408,945 )  -  -  -  (179,408,945 )
Lump sums accrued on retirement  (1,703,249,353 )  -  -  -  (1,703,249,353 )
 3,038,951,629  (150,714,084 )  (332,854,100 )  (38,736,506 )  2,516,646,939
Transfers directly (to)/from reserves  99,428,445  -  -  (99,428,445 )  -
Transfers directly (to)/from pension 
accounts  (56,527,845 )  -  -  56,527,845  -
Inter segment transfer  (522,304,689 )  207,139,655  332,956,372   (17,791,338 )  -

Movement during the year  2,559,547,540  56,425,571  102,272  (99,428,444 )  2,516,646,939
Opening fund balance 
as at 1 April 2015  43,870,059,825  4,743,709,584  1,640,800,129  1,269,483,229  51,524,052,767

Closing fund balance as at 
31 March 2016 46,429,607,365  4,800,135,155  1,640,902,401  1,170,054,785  54,040,699,706
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements [continued]

for the year ended 31 March 2017

21. Fund analysis [continued]

31 March 2016 Active and  Pensioners
 deferred Pensioners without Operations  
 members with profit profit and reserves Total

Net assets allocated to funds 
and reserves P  P  P  P   P
Property, plant and equipment  -  -  -  8,507,611  8,507,611
Investments  34,297,975,043  18,871,676,885  1,415,588,878  -  54,585,240,806
Accounts receivables  10,659,042  -  -  -  10,659,042
Cash and cash equivalents  297,139,978  80,560,671  35,227,954  -  412,928,603

Total assets  34,605,774,063  18,952,237,556  1,450,816,832  8,507,611  55,017,336,062
Benefits payable  960,229,357  -  -  -  960,229,357
Accounts payable  16,406,999  -  -  -  16,406,999

Total liabilities  976,636,356  -  -  -  976,636,356

Net assets  33,629,137,707  18,952,237,556  1,450,816,832  8,507,611  54,040,699,706

Net funding level - (under) / 
over funded  (12,800,469,658 )  14,152,102,401  (190,085,569 )  (1,161,547,174 )  -
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22. Financial risk management

Currency risk
The Fund is exposed to currency risk mainly through its investments and term deposits denominated in foreign 
currencies, and foreign investments in securities, bonds and unitised and mutual funds as per note 13. The Fund’s 
total exposure to currency risk (in P’000) through its investments in the above financial instruments amounts to 
P33,208,060 (2016: P30,958,764). The table below gives an indication of the Fund’s total exposure in different 
currencies.

Financial instruments   Amount  Amount  Amount  Total
31 March 2017   BWP ‘000  USD ‘000  ZAR ‘000  BWP ‘000

Equity  Listed  12,317,229  2,995,262  -  43,846,298
 Unlisted  2,715,938  -  -  2,715,938
Unitised funds  Listed  -  -  -  -
 Unlisted  -  3,868  38,643  90,107
Bonds  Listed  8,235,290  -  1,184,833  9,749,647
 Unlisted  -  -  -  -
Cash and cash equivalent   939,236  7,071  -  1,013,666

Total   24,207,693  3,006,201  1,223,476  57,415,656
Amount in BWP   24,207,693  31,644,215  1,563,748  57,415,656

Financial instruments   Amount  Amount  Amount  Total
31 March 2016   BWP ‘000  USD ‘000  ZAR ‘000  BWP ‘000

Equity  Listed  11,608,902  2,693,457  -  41,045,590
 Unlisted  1,969,772  -  -  1,969,772
Unitised funds  Listed  -  -  -  -
 Unlisted  -  2,637  13,801  39,043
Bonds  Listed  5,724,397  -  1,857,932  7,100,643
 Unlisted  -  -  -  -
Cash and cash equivalent   3,908,325  9,230  7,985  4,015,112

Total   23,211,396  2,705,324  1,879,718  54,170,160
Amount in BWP   23,211,396  29,566,380  1,392,384  54,170,160
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22. Financial risk management [continued]

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the possible loss in the value of a fixed income asset resulting from an unexpected and adverse 
movement in interest rates and consequent change in price.

Financial instruments that are sensitive to interest rate risk are bank balances and cash, interest bearing securities 
and term deposits.

Interest rates earned on financial instruments compare favourably with those currently available in the market. 
The net exposure to interest rate risk (in P’000) as at 31 March 2017 amounted to P1,013,666 (2016: P4,015,112) 
being its exposure in respect of investments in local and offshore fixed interest instruments and cash at bank.

Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of investment decreases as a result of changes in the prices and diminution 
of value of individual investments. The table below shows the Fund’s exposure to price risk based on the various 
stock exchanges on which its investments are traded.

Financial instruments     Johannes- Unlisted and  
 Botswana  NYSE/United burg listed on
 Stock FTSE 100 UK states stock Stock other stock 
 Exchange equity Exchange Exchange  exchanges Total

31 March 2017  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
Equity   12,317,229  -  20,801,597  -  9,496,143  42,614,969
Bonds  8,235,290  -  -  1,514,358  33,626  9,783,274
Unitised funds  -  -  -  -  2,227,979  2,227,979
Total  20,552,519  -  20,801,597  1,514,358  11,757,748  54,626,222

Financial instruments     Johannes- Unlisted and  
 Botswana  NYSE/United   burg listed on
 Stock FTSE 100 UK states stock Stock other stock 
 Exchange equity Exchange Exchange  exchanges Total

31 March 2016 P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
Equity  11,244,847  364,056  4,406,999  -  14,782,419  30,798,321
Bonds  5,724,397  -  -  1,376,246  -  7,100,643
Unitised funds  -  -  -  -  12,256,084  12,256,084
Total  16,969,244  364,056  4,406,999  1,376,246  27,038,503  50,155,048

Fair values:
The fair values of all financial instruments are substantially identical to the carrying amounts reflected in the statement of 
funds and net assets. The fair value hierarchy of the Fund is disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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22. Financial risk management [continued]

Market risk sensitivity
The set of assumptions used for each of the risk factors hereunder are not forecasts, but merely “what if’ 
scenarios and the likely impact on the current portfolio, based on selected changes in risk variables.

The table below gives an indication of the risk sensitivities of the portfolio to various risk parameters. Assuming 
that the probability of the beneficial change in the risk variables are as likely to happen as an adverse change, 
both potential increase and decrease are shown for the indicated scenarios.

Risk variable   Variable  Varies by  2017  2016
      P ‘000  P ‘000

Currency risk  Pula  1 %  (337,746 )  (306,522 )
(fair value impact)    (1)%  337,746   306,522
Price risk  Price  1 %  546,262  501,550
(fair value impact)    (1)%  (546,262 )  (501,550 )
Interest rate risk  Interest yield  1 %  99,560  111,870
(cash flow impact)    (1)%  (99,560 )  (111,870 )

Credit risk
The Fund takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when 
due. Impairment provisions are provided for losses that have been incurred by the balance sheet date, if any. 

The Fund’s main credit risk concentration is spread between debt securities and trading derivative products. Less than 10% 
of the fair value of favourable contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2016 was with a single issuer. There were no trading 
derivative products in issue as at the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Fund’s Investment Committee is responsible for portfolio management and risk concentration issues and sector exposure.
The Investment Committee is responsible for sanctioning large credit exposures to all investment managers. Financial assets 
of the Fund, which are subject to credit risk, consist mainly of investments.

Cash resources and unitised investments are placed with investment managers and financial institutions. These institutions 
and investment managers are of high standing. All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using 
approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has 
received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if 
either party fails to meet its obligation
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22. Financial risk management [continued]

The Fund is managed as follows:

Financial instrument    Managed by  
   the related  
 Managed by  parties of
 local fund  local fund  Managed by 
 managers  managers  others  Total

31 March 2017  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
Unitised funds  -  -  12,681,019  12,681,019
Bonds  5,818,036  -  -  5,818,036
Cash and cash equivalents  1,144,073  -  287,334  1,431,407
Total  6,962,109  -  12,968,353  19,930,462

Financial instrument    Managed by  
   the related  
 Managed by  parties of
 local fund  local fund  Managed by 
 managers  managers  others  Total

31 March 2016 P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
Unitised funds  180  -  12,255,904  12,256,084
Bonds  7,100,643  -  -  7,100,643
Cash and cash equivalents  3,806,665  -  208,449  4,015,114
Total  10,907,488  -  12,464,353  23,371,841

The financial assets of the Fund which are subject to credit risk consists of bonds, unitised funds, loan, cash resources and 
receivables. These are not collateralized or subject to credit enhancements. These are readily convertible into cash. The cash 
resources are placed with reputable financial institutions. The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor 
impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available).
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22. Financial risk management [continued]

Financial instruments   Fixed  Variable  Credit
  interest interest Total rating

31 March 2017   P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  
Bonds  Listed  1,783,562  30,446  1,814,008  A or similar
  107,276  8,059  115,335  AA or similar
  1,856,779  598,340  2,455,119  Not rated
 Total  3,747,617  636,845  4,384,462
 Unlisted  22,909  9,023  31,932  AA or similar
  467,198  70,055  537,253  Not rated
 Total  490,107  79,078  569,185

Unitised funds  Unlisted  4,620,913  2,461,837  7,082,750
 Total  4,620,913  2,461,837  7,082,750
Cash and cash equivalents   289,376  217,846  507,222  Not rated
 Total  289,376  217,846  507,222
 Grand total  9,148,013  3,395,606  12,543,619

Financial instruments   Fixed  Variable  Credit
  interest interest Total rating

31 March 2016   P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  
Bonds  Listed  587,347  -  587,347  A or similar
  817,484  50,914  868,398  AA or similar
  434,233  -  434,233  B or similar
  3,259,067  248,768  3,507,835  Not rated
 Total  5,098,131  299,682  5,397,813
 Unlisted  4,157  2,003  6,160  AA or similar
  428,825  217,184  646,009  Not rated
 Total  432,982  219,187  652,169
Unitised funds listed  Listed 584,619  302,494  887,113  Not rated
 Total  584,619  302,494  887,113

Cash and cash equivalents   8,326  3,836  12,162  A or similar
  67,687  -  67,687  AA or similar
  389,253  244,760  634,013  Not rated
 Total  465,266  248,596  713,862
 Grand total  6,580,998  1,069,959  7,650,957
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22. Financial risk management [continued]

These ratings have mainly been assigned by the respective asset managers and represents as follows;

A/A- or similar
Strong capacity to meet financial commitments, but somewhat susceptible to adverse economic conditions and changes in
circumstances.

AA or similar
Very strong capacity to meet financial commitments

AAA or similar
Extremely strong capacity to meet financial commitments.

BBB or similar
Highest Rating Adequate capacity to meet financial commitments, but more subject to adverse economic conditions.

B or similar
Vulnerable but currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments.

Outside of investment and trading activities, the Fund’s most significant credit risk exposure is with various departments 
of the Botswana Government, with respect to creation contributions for newly transferred members and contributions 
of monthly member and employer contributions. Given the sovereign nature of this debt, and based on the fact that the 
Government of Botswana has historically never defaulted on its obligations, the Fund believes that the credit risk attaching 
to this debt is insignificant. Further international credit rating agency Moody’s has rated the Botswana Government debt as 
“A2” which is interpreted as investment grade with a positive outlook.
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22. Financial risk management [continued]

The contribution due from the Government of Botswana is considered to be past due but not impaired. The ageing of this 
balance is as follows:

Arising from   2012  2010  2009  2008  2007  
         and before  Total

  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
Balance   97,382  44,147  175,317  197,326  911,745  1,425,917
Unallocated member transfer value netted off           (997,736 )

Net due            428,181
Paid 2016            (428,181 )
Closing balance            -

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding 
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic 
nature of the underlying businesses, the fund administrator maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash 
resources in bank call accounts

The Investment Committee monitors the Fund’s liquidity reserves on the basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried 
out at the fund administrator level within limits set by the Fund.

The table below analyses the Fund’s financial liabilities and derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period at the statement of assets available for benefits date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

 1 - 3  3 - 12   After 12     
 months  months  months  Total

31 March 2017  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
Benefits payable  984,986  -  -  984,986
Accounts payable  24,698  3,278  -  27,976
Pensioners’ fund account  -  466,272  5,974,766  6,441,038
 1,009,684  469,550  5,974,766  7,454,000

31 March 2016 1 - 3  3 - 12   After 12  Total
 months  months  months

 P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000  P ‘000
Benefits payable  960,229  -  -  960,229
Accounts payable  16,407  -  -  16,407
Pensioners’ fund account  -  466,272  5,974,766  6,441,038
 976,636  466,272  5,974,766  7,417,674
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